Public Document Pack The Royal Borough

NOTICE

OF

Maidenhead
MEETING I

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT
CONTROL PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 29TH JUNE, 2016
At 7.00 pm
in the
WRAYSBURY PRIMARY SCHOOL, WELLEY ROAD, WRAYSBURY, STAINES, TW19 5DJ,

TO: MEMBERS OF THE WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

COUNCILLORS DR LILLY EVANS (CHAIRMAN), COLIN RAYNER (VICE-CHAIRMAN),
CHRISTINE BATESON, MALCOLM BEER, DAVID HILTON AND JOHN LENTON

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS SAYONARA LUXTON, JOHN STORY, LYNDA YONG, MICHAEL AIREY,
SIMON WERNER AND LYNNE JONES

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Tuesday, 21 June 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796 251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly
by the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Do not re-enter the building
until told to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings — The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/

ITEM

AGENDA

PART |
SUBJECT

PAGE

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.

MINUTES

To confirm the Part | Minutes of the meeting of the previous meeting

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

PLEASE NOTE - Item 1, 16/00961 Concord Garage, 31 Windsor Road,
Wraysbury, Staines TW19 5DE has been WITHDRAWN from the
agenda.

To consider the Director of Development & Regeneration / Development
Control Manager’s report on planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application forms, site
plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can be found by accessing
the Planning Applications Public Access Module by selecting the following
link. http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp or from Democratic Services on
01628 796251 or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

11-120

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

To consider the Essential Monitoring Reports.

121-124



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



Agenda Iltem 3

WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 1 JUNE 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Dr Lilly Evans (Chairman), Colin Rayner (Vice-Chairman),
Christine Bateson, Malcolm Beer, David Hilton and John Lenton

Also in attendance: Councillor Derek Wilson

Officers: Melvin Andrews, Wendy Binmore, Melvin Andrews and Alistair De Joux,
Jenifer Jackson and Lyndsey Jennings

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

None received.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Clir Bateson — Declared a personal interest in items 2 and 3 as she helped with the
organisation of petitions. Clir Bateson left the room during the discussions and votes of the
items.

Clir Dr Evans - declared a personal interest in items 2 and 3 as she was the Parish
Councillor for Sunningdale and was involved in looking at the applications and preparing
materials in response to the items. Clir Dr Evans left the room during the discussions and
votes of the applications.

Clir Hilton — Declared a personal interest in item 4 as he is a member of Sunninghill & Ascot
Parish Council. Clir Hilton stated that he did not attend the meeting when the applications
were discussed. Clir Hilton also stated his wife, Parish Councillor Barbara Hilton, was the
Chair of the Parish Council Planning committee and was also speaking on the item. He stated
he had come to Panel with an open mind.

Clir Rayner — Declared a personal interest in the TPO as his daughter attended school on
Wells Lane.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Part | minutes of the meeting of the Windsor Rural Development
Control Panel held on 3 May 2016 be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

Application Applicant and Proposed Development

16/00266* Kebbell Developments Ltd: Erection of 4 x apartments (3 x 2 bed and
1 x 3 bed) at Land at Hill House, Cross Road, Sunningdale, Ascot —
THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to DEFER the application in
for a site visit to include viewing from neighbouring properties.

(The Panel was Tom Burke, Diana Tombs (NPDG, Patrick Griffin
(SPAE and PClIIr Michael Burn in objection).



16/01179

16/00645*

16/00446

Mr Mills — Kebbell Developments Ltd: Erection of 5 Apartments with
associated works at Land at Hill House, Cross Road, Sunningdale,
Ascots — THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to DEFER the
application in for a site visit to include viewing from
neighbouring properties

(The Panel was addressed by Tom Burke, Diana tombs (NPDG),
Patrick Griffin (SPAE), and PClIr Michael Burn in objection).

Mr McArthur — GCNU Ltd And Crest: Replace planning permission
09/01219/FULL — Upgrading of existing priority junction to a staggered
junction in order to extend the time limit for implementation at Junction
of A30 London Road, B383 Broomhall Lane And B383 Chobham
Road, London Road, Sunninghill, Ascot - THE PANEL VOTED to
DEFER and DELEGATE APPROVAL of the application to grant
planning permission on the satisfactory completion of an
undertaking to provide that the permission shall not be
implemented until:

a) The applicant has carried out further studies as to the
optimum means of providing appropriate traffic management
alongside environmental improvements in support of
Neighbourhood Plan policy NP/SS5;

b) A Memorandum of Understanding shall be completed to
provide a framework for the discussions in regard to (i)
above;

c) And for public consultation to be carried out in relation to the
optimum means of providing mitigation at the junction of the
A30, Broomhall Lane and Chobham Road.

Two Councillors voted in favour of the motion (Clirs Hilton and
Lenton), one Councillor voted against the motion (Clir Dr Evans)
and one Councillor abstained from the vote (Clir Beer).

(The Panel was addressed by Christine Gadd, Diana Tombs (NPDG,
Patrick Griffin (SPAE) and PCIIr Yvonne Jacklin in objection).

Christine Kelso: Removal of condition 32 (requirement to improve
junction at A30 London Road/Broomhall Lane/Chobham Road) of
planning permission RU. 13/0856 (Hybrid planning permission for the
demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site
including mixed uses, accesses, landscaping, infrastructure and utility
works at former DERA site, Chobham Lane, Longcross, Chertsey —
THE PANEL VOTED that the Royal Borough of Windsor and
maidenhead requests that Runnymede Borough council as local
planning authority refuse the request to remove condition 32,
and instead amend the condition as follows:

e No part of the Class B1 use development hereby approved
shall be occupied until a programme of highways
management improvements to the A30 London
Road/Broomhall Lane/Chobham Road junctions made
necessary by the development have been submitted to and

8



agreed in writing by the local planning authority, which
shall first have been agreed to in writing with the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead, and the approved
highways management improvements have been
implemented in full.

Three Councillors voted in favour (Clirs Beer, Hilton and Lenton)
and one Councillor voted against (Clir Rayner)

(The Panel was addressed by Diana Tombs (NPDG) in objection).

16/00691*  Mr Gunther: Erection of 1 x 6 bedroom dwelling with attached garage
and associated accommodation over and new front entrance gates
following demolition of existing dwelling at Earley Edge, 2 Fir Tree
close, Ascot, SL5 9LJ — THE PANEL VOTED to APPROVE the
application and grant planning permission to the conditions
listed in Section 10 of the Main report and with negotiations with
officers to relocate the house back by two metres then the officer
should carry out a new neighbour notification on the revised
plans before a consent is issued and any new issues raised
would lead to this being reported back to Panel

Four Councillors voted in favour of the motion (Clirs Bateson,
Beer, Hilton and Lenton) and two Councillors voted against (Clirs
Dr Evans and Rayner)

(The Panel was addressed by Martin Baker, diana Tombs (NPDG),
Peter Standley (SPAE) and PCIIr Barbara Hilton in objection and John
Andrews the agent).

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 024 OF 2015 — LAND TO THE SOUTH OF WELLS LANE
AND LAND TO THE NORTH OF COOMBE LANE ASCOT

1. Background:

Current operations at the Oakfield Farm, Well Lane, have resulted in the gradual
erosion of surrounding woodland.

This Tree Preservation Order (TPO) has been served to protect the woodland located
to the south of Wells Lane and north of Coombe Lane owing to pressure for proposed
housing development at Oakfield Farm, Wells Lane, relating to the current planning
application 15/02727. There is also pressure for other land use changes which could
also adversely affect the woodland.

This woodland is located within the Wells Local Wildlife Site (LWS). This LWS
comprises of wet woodland predominantly populated by silver birch trees, interspaced
with semi mature oak, sweet chestnut, and willow scrub. Natural England has
recorded this woodland as priority deciduous woodland habitat and therefore it is
regionally and nationally important. Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre
(TVERC) indicates this woodland maybe ancient semi natural woodland.

The woodland to the west, south, and south west of Oakfield Farm provides an
important haven for flora and fauna, and wildlife corridor into surrounding woodland.
It's inclusion within the Order will preserve this important woodland priority habitat for
future generations, and maintain the sylvan character and appearance of the area.

9



Due to growing development pressure in Wells Lane, several individual mature trees

have been protected by individual, group and area designations within the Order.

TPO 024/2014 relates to trees as per the specification below:

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER SCHEDULE

NO ON MAP DESCRIPTION
W1 Woodland - Protecting all
trees of all species

Al Area 1 - Protecting all trees
of all species

Gl 6 x Oak

Tl 1 x Cedar

T2 1 x Oak

T3 1 x Oak

T4 1 x Oak

SITUATION

Queen's Hill Lodge St
George's School and land
on the south side of Wells
Lane Sunninghill, Nutfield
wells lane ascot SL5 7DY,
Oakfield Farm Wells Lane
Ascot SL5 7DY, Land on the
north-west side of Coombe
Lane, Sunninghill, Land on
the north east side of
Coombe Lane, Sunninghill
Berks SI5 7QD, Oak Lea,
Coombe Lane, Ascot,
Berkshire SL5 7AT.

Land on the South East side
of Wells

Nutfield wells lane ascot SL5
7DY

Wells Cottage ,Wells lane,
Ascot SL5 7DY

Nutfield wells lane ascot sl5
7dy

St George's School and land
on the south side of Wells
Lane Sunninghill

St George's School and land
on the south side of Wells
Lane Sunninghill

St George's School and land
on the south side of Wells
Lane Sunninghill

THE PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY to confirm TPO 024/2015 with modification (s)

ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

Details of Planning Appeals Received and the Appeal Decision Report were noted.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, finished at 9.05 pm

CHAIRMAN. ... ..o,

10



Agenda Item 4

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Windsor Rural Panel

29th June 2016

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 16/00961/FULL Recommendation REF Page No. N/A
Location: Concord Garage 31 Windsor Road Wraysbury Staines TW19 5DE — ITEM WITHDRAWN
Proposal: Change of use from car sales showroom and repair and servicing workshop (sui generis/B2) to shop (Al).
Including extension and alterations together with associated access, parking and refuse storage, following
demolition of one of the existing buildings and canopy.
Applicant:  FPC (Wraysbury) Ltd Member Call-in: Not Applicable Expiry Date: 1 July 2016
Item No. 2 Application No. 16/00266/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 31
Location: Land At Hill House Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot
Proposal: Erection of 4 x apartments (3 x 2 bed and 1x 3 bed).
Applicant:  Kebbell Developments Member Call-in: Not Applicable Expiry Date: 18 March 2016
Ltd
Application No. 16/01179/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 31
Location: Land At Hill House Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot
Proposal: Erection of 5 x apartments with associated works
Applicant:  Mr Mills - Kebbell Member Call-in: Not Applicable Expiry Date: 2 June 2016
Developments Ltd
Item No. 3 Application No. 16/01127/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 66
Location: Sandhills And Sandhills Cottage And The Sunningdale Osteopathic Sandhills Cottage Cross Road

AGLIST

Sunningdale Ascot

11



Proposal: 2 No. new dwellings with basement, garage and associated landscaping following demolition of existing 2 No.
dwellings and associated garaging.

Applicant:  Mr Smith Member Call-in:  ClIr D Hilton Expiry Date: 13 June 2016

Item No. 4 Application No. 16/01165/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 89
Location: Mandalay Burleigh Road Ascot SL5 8ES

Proposal: Two storey rear, single storey rear, single storey front infill, first floor side extensions, conversion of loft to form
additional habitable accommodation, 3 rear and 2 front roof lights and amendments to fenestration.

Applicant:  Mr Forster Member Call-in: Clir D Hilton Expiry Date: 3 June 2016

Item No. 5 Application No. 16/01089/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 99

Location: Rajvoog Tandoori Restaurant 4 High Street Sunninghill Ascot SL5 9NE

Proposal: Single storey detached outbuilding to rear
Applicant:  Mr Khan Member Call-in: Cllr L Yong Expiry Date: 8 July 2016
Item No. 6 Application No. 16/01120/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No. 109

Location: Watersmeet House 18 Kingswood Creek Wraysbury Staines TW19 5EN

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, replacement roof with habitable accommodation, 1 x front and 1 x rear dormers
with amendments to fenestration. (Retrospective)

Applicant:  Mr Hothi Member Call-in:  ClIr J Lenton Expiry Date: 14 June 2016
Planning Appeals Received Page No. 121
Appeal Decision Report Page No. 123

12

AGLIST



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

29 June 2016 ltem: 2
Application 16/00266/FULL

No.:

Location: Land At Hill House Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot

Proposal: Erection of 4 x apartments (3 x 2 bed and 1x 3 bed).

Applicant: Kebbell Developments Ltd

Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson- Paul Dickinson And Associates

Parish/Ward:  Sunningdale Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

Application 16/01179/FULL

No.:

Location: Land At Hill House Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot
Proposal: Erection of 5 x apartments with associated works
Applicant: Mr Mills - Kebbell Developments Ltd

Agent: Mr Paul Dickinson - Paul Dickinson And Associates

Parish/Ward:  Sunningdale Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Alistair De Joux on 01628 685729 or at
alistair.dejoux@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

SUMMARY

This report deals with two current applications for apartments at the same site. Application 1 is
for four apartments and the more recent Application 2 is for five. The applications were
previously considered at the Windsor Rural Development Control Panel meeting on 1% June,
when members deferred decisions pending a site visit. The report has been reproduced below
with amendments to reflect the Panel Update issued on 1% June 2016.

The two applications follow three previous applications for apartments and, prior to that, for a
single house on the same site. The single house proposal was approved and remains extant,
while all of the apartment proposals have been refused. Two of these refusals were the subject
of recent appeals, which were considered concurrently. Like the current pair of applications, the
dismissed recent appeals were also for apartment buildings, one to accommodate four flats
(Appeal A) and the other for five (Appeal B). Both were refused for a range of reasons but the
Inspector dismissed them primarily on just one issue. This was the impacts to the future health
and viability of a protected oak tree to the rear of the proposed building. For Appeal B only, the
Inspector did not consider that the Council’s approach in regard to provision of mitigation for the
Thames Basin Heaths SPA was robust. The other reasons for refusal were considered to be
overcome by the appeal Inspector, so the consideration below is largely limited to the points on
which the appeals were dismissed.

The site of the proposed building comprises a tennis court and adjoining garden land within the
grounds of Hill House, including a woodland garden on the rear part of the site. Trees here are
protected by TPO, and include the English oak referred to above together with a mix of native
and non-native pine species. Other trees within the garden of Hill House, to the east of the
application site, are also covered by TPO.

The site is within a ‘leafy residential suburbs’ townscape character area as defined by the
Council’'s Townscape Assessment. Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/DG1 supports single
detached dwellings in this character area, unless it can be satisfactorily demonstrated that other
forms of development would retain the identified character of the area (Policy NP/DG1.2) or
where it can be demonstrated that the proposed development would not harm local character
(Policy NP/DG1.2). The intensification of the use of the site that would result from apartment
development of the type proposed here formed part of the basis for refusal of the previous
applications, but this was not upheld by the Inspector at the subsequent appeals.

13




15

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

It is understood that Application 1 is how subject to an appeal to the Planning Inspectorate on
grounds of non-determination, although at the time of writing this report no start letter for the
appeal had been received by the Council.

Application 1: 16/00266/FULL

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission subject to the conditions
listed in Section 9 of this report OR, if the appeal is registered before a decision is
made, that a ‘would have approved’ decision be noted.

Application 2: 16/01179/FULL

It is recommended the Panel authorises the Borough Planning Manager:

1. | To grant planning permission subject to demonstrating that the roof terrace at
Apartment 5 will not result in loss of privacy to neighbours and with the conditions
listed in Section 9 of this report.

2. | To refuse planning permission if drawings to demonstrate that the roof terrace at
Apartment 5 will not result in loss of privacy to neighbours have not been provided
by 1° June 2016, for the reason that the would result in an unacceptable loss of
residential amenity to neighbouring properties.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o The Council's Constitution does not give the Borough Planning Manager delegated powers to
determine the application in the way recommended; such decisions can only be made by the
Panel.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is part of the larger Hill House property, which is located on the northern side of Cross
Road. It consists of a tennis court and ground around it and to the rear including woodland
garden land, all of which currently forms part of the extensive garden at Hill House. Hill House
itself is a two-storey house of an attractive design that appears to be of late Georgian or early
Victorian origin, with more recent single storey rear extensions to the rear. The attractive
grounds include many large and significant trees, many of which are subject to Tree Protection
Orders, and some of which are within the rear part of the application site. Apart from one Scots
pine tree identified for removal in the extant permission; this application would not require the
felling of any of these significant and important trees.

The property lies near the edge of the settlement area approximately 150m to the east of the
A30 London Road, within walking distance of the shops and railway station in Sunningdale.
Land to the west and north is predominately residential in character, with large dwellings and,
particularly on the northern side of Cross Road, flatted developments at Hillside Park - these
include Richmond House, Fisher House and Beaufort House - and Dorchester Mansions. On
the opposite side of Cross Road there are a number of large detached dwellings, which include
Fairways and its annex - this is located close to the Cross Road frontage - and Queenswood,
with other relatively closely spaced detached house towards the A30 London Road.

The Sunningdale Ladies Golf Club course lies to the south-east balance beyond Hill House itself,
and is within the Green Belt.

Apart from this nearby area of the Green Belt, the site and its immediate surroundings are
classified within a “leafy residential suburb” townscape type in the Council’'s Townscape
Assessment, specifically as character area 13E (Sunning Avenue and London Road,
Sunningdale). Some nearby properties to the south-west are within the “villas in a woodland
setting” townscape type, although these do not form part of the immediate context for the
application site.

14



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Both proposals are for the construction of apartments with basement car parking, both in a
building of very similar design to that of the extant permission for a single dwelling. The
differences are as follows:

The basement would be considerably larger in order to accommodate the required number of car
parking spaces.

The roof of the main element of the building would be more steeply pitched to form a mansard
roof with rear facing dormer windows, as compared to the approximately 45-degree pitch of the
crown roof in the extant permission.

There would be one external parking space provided for delivery vehicles.

For Application 1 - the four apartment scheme - there would be two each flats on each level of
accommodation (referred to as lower ground and ground floor on the submitted drawings).

For Application 2 (five apartments) the provision of two each flats on each of the lower ground
and ground floors would be replicated in the five apartment scheme, and in addition there would
be a fifth apartment within the roofspace. Part of the roof would be cut away at the rear to
provide a terrace for this flat.

There would also be some other minor changes to fenestration on the flank walls, with more
windows to be provided on the flank walls on both elevations and more particularly on the north-
west elevation facing towards Richmond House.

Relevant recent planning history is as follows:

Ref. Description Decision and Date
13/01206/FULL | Construction of a detached house. Permitted, 15.08.2013
14/00451/FULL | Construction of five apartments. Refused, 06.06.2014
14/03591/FULL | Construction of 4 no. apartments. Refused, 10.02.2015 and

dismissed at appeal

15/01199/FULL | Construction of 1 apartment block comprising of 4 | Refused, 05.06.2015 and
x 2 bed and 1 x 3 bed apartments. dismissed at appeal

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and Decision-taking
Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways
settlement gand Y Protected Biodiversity E_ngrgy
) Trees efficiency
area Parking
RBWM Local DG1, H10, P4, T5 N6
Plan H11
Neighbourhood NP/H2, NP/T1 NP/EN2 NP/EN4 NP/DG5
Plan NP/DG1,
NP/DG2,
NP/DG3
and
NP/EN3

15




Supplementary planning documents

53

5.4

6.1

6.2

6.3

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

e Sustainable Design and Construction
e Planning for an Ageing Population
e Thames Basin Heaths SPD

More information on these documents can be found at;
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

) RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration in both applications are:

Character issues as determined in the recent appeal decisions;
Impacts on the protected oak tree at the rear of the property;
The mitigation of impacts on the Thames Basin Heaths SPA;
Impacts on protected wildlife within the site; and

for Application 2 only, the impacts of the roof terrace on neighbouring properties.

Impact on the character of the area

The recently appealed schemes were refused on several issues, including the following character
issue which was the same in both decisions:

The intensification of the use of this site, as compared to the extant permission for a
single detached house (RBWM ref. 13/01206/FULL), would result in the continued
erosion of the character of this village-edge location, which is very close to the Green
Belt boundary, contrary to Policies NP/DG1.1, 1.2, 1.3 and 1.6 and NP/DG3.2 of the
Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2011 - 2026, and advice in
the National Planning Policy Framework.

For both appeals, the Inspector concluded that the apartment use would not be harmful to the
character and appearance of the area as compared to the extant permission for a single house.
The inspector noted that the design and siting of the building in both schemes would respect the
character and appearance of the area. The decision noted the conflict with the objective of Policy
NP/DG1.2 to provide for detached houses in this townscape character area, but also noted that
the policy accepts that alternative forms of development may be acceptable where it can be
satisfactorily demonstrated that the identified character of the area would be retained. The
Inspector considered that the density of both schemes would be low, and comparable to the
adjacent apartment development at Hillside Park. While there would be more vehicle movements
into and out of the site as compared to an individual dwelling, the level of activity associated with
the proposed use would not be so significant that it would result in harm to the tranquil
environment of this part of Cross Road. The Inspector also considered that the size of the garden
would be suitable for the enjoyment of future occupiers. Use by a greater number of occupants
than in a single dwelling was also not considered to be likely to result in a materially greater

16


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

intensity to that of the approved scheme, and as such the tranquil character of the area would be
sustained.

The Council’'s reason for refusal cited above was not therefore supported by the appeal
Inspector. The two current applications are not significantly different in terms of their streetscape
appearance from the appeal schemes, and the levels of activity at the site that they would
generate are the same as for the previous schemes that had the same levels of accommodation.
For that reason it must be considered that this issue has been satisfactorily resolved, and no
objection to either of the current proposals is raised. Density was also considered, and noted as
similar to the neighbouring flats.

Differences in the appearance from the extant permission, including the numbers of windows on
flank elevations of the building, were not considered further by the Inspector as there was no
objection to these points in the Council’'s decisions on the appealed schemes. Impact on light
were also not considered in the appeal decision, but this has not been an issue objected to by the
Council in any of the application for the site, and it continues to be the case that the current
applications would not result in any material difference in this respect from the extant permission.
The Neighbourhood Plan objection letter notes the lack of windows in the south elevation for
Apartment 5 and considers that this is poor design, but this was not objected to in the application
that led to Appeal B as there are sufficient other windows to ensure an appropriate level of
amenity for this apartment, and no objection is raised.

Impacts on the protected oak tree at the rear of the property

While the appeal decisions did not consider that additional future residents at the property would
result in significant detriment to the character of the area because of the intensification of
activities and traffic, the decision did however agree that additional impacts on the mature Oak to
the rear of the building site would result, as compared to the extant permission for a single
dwelling. Both appeals were dismissed for that reason. This is a protected tree (TPO No. 17 of
1998) and is an attractive, mature tree in good condition that is visible from neighbouring
properties and from Cross Road.

The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (Local Plan) Policy N6 and Policy
NP/EN2 of the NP seek to protect significant trees within and outside of development sites.
Policy NP/EN3 of the NP requires proposals for new dwellings on private residential gardens to
have, amongst other things, an acceptable impact on the landscape and environmental value of
the site. The stem diameter of the Oak tree is an indication that it is an Ancient Tree; NPPF 118
advises that planning permission should not result in the loss of aged or veteran trees found
outside ancient woodland, unless the need for and benefits of the development in that location
clearly outweigh the loss.

In both applications, the apartment building would have the same footprint as the previously
approved dwelling on the site. In considering the single-house application at the site, it was
accepted that a development in this location could be implemented without causing significant
damage to the tree, providing appropriate precautions and controls to protect the tree including
its root protection area are put in place. However, in both appeal proposals parts of the living
accommodation to Flat 3 would have been closer to the Oak tree than in the approved scheme.
This resulted from the infilling of a rear-facing balcony in the extant permission, which resulted in
Apartment 3 having windows approximately 9 metres from the canopy of the tree, including a
Juliet balcony for Bedroom 1, and the main windows serving Bedroom 2 and also a dressing
room which would be built into the space where the balcony would previously have been
provided. In the five apartment scheme (Appeal B) the main outlook for the roof-level Apartment
5 would have been into the canopy of the tree.

In this pair of applications, the balcony in the extant permission would be reinstated, and
Bedroom 1 would have a pair of glazed doors to this balcony, set perpendicular to views to the
oak tree and providing an alternative outlook to the rear facing windows. The rear facing
windows for Bedroom 2 is in this application by another pair of glazed doors to the same
balcony; these are 2.5m further from than the tree canopy than the windows in both of the
Appeal proposals. In this pair of applications, the primary outlook for Bedroom 1 would now be
perpendicular to the oak tree. Notwithstanding that the use of these rooms could potentially be

17



6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

changed (albeit that the provision of en-suite bathrooms for both bedrooms would make that less
likely), it is considered that this improves the living conditions for future occupiers of Flat 3
sufficiently to make the threat of future detrimental pruning works to the tree less likely. The
balcony would provide 12 sq.m. of private outdoor amenity space that was absent in the two
appeal schemes.

In Appeal B, the five unit scheme, proximity of Flat 5’s rear-facing windows to the canopy of the
protected oak tree was not a matter of concern for the Inspector, presumably because they
would be an additional 7.5m from the tree than the windows serving the refused scheme (a total
distance of almost 20m). The current Application 2 has added a large roof terrace adjacent to
the lounge by cutting into the roof on this part of the building, which would however remain at full
height so that the appearance of the front of the building would remain largely as in the extant
permission. (This would also prevent any direct views to the west towards the adjacent flats at
Hillside Court.) The addition of this terrace results in an alternative direction of outlook from Flat
5’s open plan kitchen lounge in this application, and the terrace itself would provide about 45
sq.m. of outdoor amenity space for future occupiers.

Provision of a private balcony or terrace for Flats 3 and 5 would reduce pressure on the use of
the rear garden. Plot 2 would also have a more enclosed patio area as compared to those
shown in the Appeal proposals. This area of about 37 sg.m. was shown as partially enclosed
with a low wall in the appeal schemes, and this wall is extended further along the back of this flat
to provide a more delineated private amenity area of this flat. Both this and the other lower
ground floor flat (Plot 1) would retain direct access into this garden, while and the other ‘upper
floor’ flat, Plot 2, would have Juliet balconies overlooking the garden at a distance of
approximately 12m from the oak tree. The additional amenity spaces for Plots 3 and 5 and
improved delineation for the patio at Plot 2 would reduce pressure on the use of the rear garden
area adjacent to the oak tree as compared to the schemes in the dismissed appeals.

The Tree Officer's comments take a different approach to the two applications. For Application
1, he notes that the changes that have been made in relation to Plot 3 secure a similar level of
tree protection as in the previously approved scheme, and therefore he did no object to this
application. For Application 2, he comments that:

The additional accommodation in the roof space together with the subdivision of the
property into flats would worsen the spatial relationship between the building and the
adjacent protected oak tree. This would result in more principal accommodation being
occupied in close proximity to this significant and important tree and will lead to future
pressure to prune it in a way that would be detrimental to its character and long term
viability.

However, as discussed above, the additional accommodation, Plot 5, has a large outdoor
terrace, and the windows facing the oak tree canopy would be approximately 20m distinct from
the canopy. It is noted also that the flats are not of the type that are generally occupied by
families. Greater use of the woodland area on the north side of the oak tree, which extends for
another 40m north of the oak tree, could also be provided by the requiring details of sitting out
areas within this area to be provided as part of the landscaping requirements in any permission
that is granted. On balance, it is considered that the impacts of the proposals in regard to the
protected oak tree have been sufficiently addressed in both applications to have overcome this
objection in both of the refused schemes. Pruning and removal of other trees at the site including
a protected oak tree were previously agreed in the extant permission.

The mitigation of impacts on the Thames Basin Heaths SPA

The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (SPA) was designated in 2005 to protect and
manage the ecological structure and function of the area to sustain the nationally important
breeding populations of Nightjar, Woodlark and Dartford Warbler. As such it has statutory
protection under the Conservation of Habitats and Species (Amendment) Regulations 2012.
National planning policy in respect of conserving and enhancing the natural environment is
contained within NPPF 11 of and further guidance is provided within Circular 06/2005. Whilst the
South East Plan has been revoked, Policy NRM6 remains in force and requires new residential
development to demonstrate adequate measures to be taken to mitigate the effects of the

18



6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

7.

development on the SPA. The Council's Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
Supplementary Planning Document provides further guidance in respect of such mitigation.

The appeal site is located within the 400m - 5 km buffer zone around the SPA, where it is
considered that additional residential development would result in additional recreational
demands on the SPA. Since the provisions of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Regulations 2010 now prevent the Council from seeking pooled Section 106 financial
contributions, the Council has used the alternative mechanism of using a condition to require a
scheme to be put in place to mitigate impacts on the SPA. This is generally achieved through a
planning obligation completed under section 111 of the Local Government Act (LGA). While the
Inspector for two appeals noted that Planning Practice Guidance discourages the use of
negatively worded conditions, condition 19 below would provide for SPA mitigation in the event
that permission is granted.

The Council’s ecologist considers that Natural England should be consulted for the applications
due to the site’s proximity to the Thames Basin Heaths SPA. However, provided that the
applicant complies with the Council’'s agreed approach on mitigation of impacts on the SPA, as
noted above, it is considered that Natural England no longer needs to comment individually on
applications with respect to this issue.

Impacts on protected wildlife within the site

A survey has been undertaken at the site that has been reviewed by the Council’s ecologist, who
recommends appropriate conditions in the event that planning permission is granted.

For Application 2 only, the impacts of the roof terrace on neighbouring properties

The roof terrace for Flat 5 would be approximately 17m at its closest point from the closest
windows at Richmond House, to the north-west, and from Hill House. As this terrace would be cut

into the roof slope it appears that the roof itself would screen Richmond House from any direct
views.

Views to habitable room windows at Hill House would be more direct; windows in the north-west
elevation of Hill House directly face the roof terrace. While the distance between the two
buildings may be sufficient to ensure that there would be no adverse impacts buildings, further
clarification of this issue is required and it would the recommendation at Section 1 takes this into
account.

Other material considerations

The Highways Officer has not objected, but has requested a number of conditions in the event
that planning permission is granted, including provision of visibility splays commensurate with the
40mph speed limit on Cross Road and gradient for the access ramp to the basement car
parking.

Housing Land Supply

Paragraphs 7 and 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) set out that there will
be a presumption in favour of Sustainable Development. Paragraph 49 of the NPPF states that
applications for new homes should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development, and that relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be
considered up-to-date if the local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of
deliverable housing sites. The Borough Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land
supply.

It is acknowledged that this scheme would make a contribution to the Borough’s housing stock
and it is the view of the Local Planning Authority that that the socio-economic benefits of the
additional dwelling(s) would also weigh in favour of the development.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

20 occupiers were notified directly of botfgpplications.



The planning officer posted site notices for application ref. 16/00266/FULL at the site on
01.02.2016 and for application ref. 16/01179/FULL on 28.04.2016

Neighbour letters and consultation responses for the two applications are listed separately below:
Comments from interested parties for Application 1. 16/00266/FULL
Four letters were received objecting to the application, including one from an individual and one

each from the Society for the Protection of Ascot and Environs and the Neighbourhood Plan
Delivery Group. These are summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | Impacts on privacy at Hillside Park. 6.5
2. | Impact on protected oak tree. 6.6 - 6.13
3. | Density of the development 6.4
4. | Previous appeals for similar proposals have been dismissed. 6.2-6.13,6.15
Consultees’ responses for Application 1: 16/00266/FULL
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Parish The revised application continues to be out of character for 6.2-6.13
Council: the area and the Inspector's main issues identified in the
Appeal Decision rejections have not been addressed.
Seek clarification that the gradient/angle of the short
: . . . 6.20
driveway to access the basement parking area is compliant
as the building line is now further forward.
Highways No objection; conditions requested in the event that planning 6.20
Officer: permission is granted.
Trees No objection subject to conditions. 6.6 -6.12
Officer:
Ecologist: No objection on ground of impacts on protected wildlife 6.16, 6.17
within the site, subject to conditions. Considers that Natural
England should be consulted for this application.

Comments from interested parties for Application 2: 16/01179/FULL

Six letters were received objecting to the application, including one from an individual and one
each from the Society for the Protection of Ascot and Environs and the Neighbourhood Plan
Delivery Group. These are summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. Overdevelopment of the site and adverse impact on the character of 6.2 -6.15
the area including increase in density.
2. Adverse impact on residential amenity and privacy. 6.5

20



3. Impact on daylight to neighbouring apartments. 6.5
4. Adverse impact on the protected oak tree. 6.6 - 6.13
5. Removal of other trees. 6.13
6. Impacts on protected wildlife. 6.17
7. Highways safety including difficulty of access to the A30. 6.20
8. The proposal does not overcome the Inspector’s reasons for refusal. 6.6 - 6.13, 6.15
9. Poor level of amenity for future occupiers of Flat 5 due to their being 6.5
no south-facing windows.
Consultees’ responses for Application 2: 16/01179/FULL
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Parish Concerns with impact on the protected oak tree noted in the 6.2-6.13
Council: appeal decision, and that the number of windows facing the

tree is likely to lead to its future pruning.

Seek clarification that the gradient/angle of the short

driveway to access the basement parking area is compliant

as the building line is now further forward. 6.20
Highways No objection; conditions requested in the event that planning 6.20
Officer: permission is granted.
Trees Objection. 6.6 -6.12
Officer:
Ecologist: No objection on ground of impacts on protected wildlife 6.16, 6.17

within the site, subject to conditions. Considers that Natural

England should be consulted for this application.
Thames No objection. Noted.
Water:

8. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - site location plan

e Appendix B -

e Appendix C -

16/00266/FULL (Application 1)

16/01179/FULL (Application 2)

site layout, elevation drawings and floor plans for application ref.

site layout, elevation drawings and floor plans for application ref.

o Appendix D - elevation drawings and floor plans for extant permission 13/01206/FULL

o Appendix E - elevation drawings and floor plans for dismissed appeal ref. 14/03591/FULL
o Appendix F - elevation drawings and floor plans for dismissed appeal ref. 15/01199/FULL
e Appendix G - appeal decision for previous applications ref. 14/03591/FULL and

15/01199/FULL

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues are considered able to be successfully resolved.

21




CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No site clearance or excavation shall commence in association with the development until a
biodiversity mitigation strategy, including details of provision of nesting boxes and other habitat
provision / improvements (which should be incorporated into the landscaping proposals for the
site), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved mitigation measures shall then be implemented in their entirety within the timescales
approved within the strategy.

Reason: In order to comply with Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/E4 and with advice in the
National Planning Policy Framework 2012.

Prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being brought onto the site and prior to any
demolition works in connection with the development, details of the measures to protect, during
construction and demolition, the trees to be retained within the development shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved measures shall be
implemented in full prior to any demolition works or before any equipment, machinery or
materials are brought onto the site, and shall then be maintained until the completion of all
construction work and all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently
removed from the site. These measures shall include fencing in accordance with British
Standard 5837:2012. Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with
this condition and the ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any
excavation be made, without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 and N6.

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

No development shall take place until detailed drawings of the access have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, including details that demonstrate that
the ramp to the basement parking does not exceed 1:12 (with adequate transitions) to ensure
that safe and satisfactory access can be provided and assist with refuse / cycle access. The
access shall then be constructed in accordance with the approved details and retained as such.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5 and DG1.

No development shall take place until samples of the materials to be used on the external
surfaces of the development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy DG1

No development shall take place until details of measures to ensure that the proposed
apartments are suitable for occupation by people of all age groups, including the elderly, have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall
demonstrate how the development would meet the standards, including the Lifetime Homes
standard, as set out in the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Planning for an Ageing
Population Supplementary Planning Document. The development shall be carried out and
subsequently retained and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

22



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development accessible for all age groups are
included in the development and to comply with the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Planning for an Ageing Population Supplementary Planning Document.

No development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works,
including boundary treatment, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting
season following the substantial completion of the development and retained in accordance with
the approved details. Details to be included in the submission shall include plant nhumbers,
grades and densities, and materials to be used in hard surfaced areas and any fences or walls.
If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the
approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement for it,
is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or defective, another
tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted in the
immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written consent to any
variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to, the
character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policy - Local Plan DGL1.

Prior to the commencement of development, a plan showing the position of all underground
services in relation to the root protection areas of retained trees and hedges and proposed soft
landscaping shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All
underground services shall then be provided only in accordance with the approved details and
maintained as such, unless otherwise first approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1 and N6.

No other part of the development shall commence until the access has been constructed in
accordance with the approved drawing. The access shall thereafter be retained.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5, DG1

No development shall commence until details of all finished slab and roof levels in relation to
ground level (against OD Newlyn and including roof levels for Richmond House and other
buildings close to the application site) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance
with the approved details.

Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking space has been provided in
accordance with the approved drawing. The space approved shall be retained for parking in
association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

No part of the development shall be commenced until visibility splays of 2.4m metres by 43m
metres have been provided at the site entrance. All dimensions are to be measured along the
edge of the driveway and the back of footway from their point of intersection. The areas within
these splays shall be kept free of all obstructions to visibility over a height of 0.6 metres above
carriageway level.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5.

No part of the development shall be occupied until a refuse bin storage area and recycling
facilities have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These facilities shall be kept available for
use in association with the development at all times.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate facilities that allow it to be
serviced in a manner which would not adversely affect the free flow of traffic and highway safety
and to ensure the sustainability of the development. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

23



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

No part of the development shall be occupied until covered and secure cycle parking facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved drawing. These facilities shall thereafter
be kept available for the parking of cycles in association with the development at all times.
Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate cycle parking facilities in
order to encourage the use of alternative modes of transport. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T7,
DG1.

The hard surface shall be made of porous materials and retained thereafter or provision shall be
made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water from the hard surface to a permeable or
porous area or surface within the curtilage of the property.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and pollution and increase the level of sustainability of the
development and to comply with Requirement 5 of the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead
Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning Document.

No outdoor lighting may be provided at the site unless details have first been submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall then be implemented
and maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To provide a development that is complementary to this edge of settlement location.
Relevant Policy - Local Plan DG1.

No development shall take place until a scheme for the mitigation of the effects of the
development on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall make provision for the
delivery of Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) and for provision towards Strategic
Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM). In the event that the proposal is for the physical
provision of SANG, the SANG shall be provided in accordance with the approved scheme before
any dwelling is occupied. Reason: To ensure that the development, either on its own or in
combination with other plans or projects, does not have a significant adverse effect on a
European site within the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

24



DIk 1)

M

I

»;;Q;W;_m

UoDmEu0d
40, D93 X OF 10U % DU AINO SISdNTId ONINNY g 10] BH3/DOL 5 UMD s
ooy

05-2d 0Tzl -yl Q4 onbig

£ RECLN UOISIASY
Y102 20 -eq [o74 I :2)eag

ONINNYId  :smeis

ueld uolea0T BYS
ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
SS0ID ‘8SNOH |lIH e pue]

"aL7 INIWGOT3A3A 113893

BRL

spaloid
JuslD

WSzt

w00t ws'L8 weL we'zg

voyduosaa ' Ady

wes  wese WSt usZL o

05zt

25



fpperix 8

1NoAeT 8YS pesodold BpIL
ajepbuluung ‘peoy
$8040) ‘OSNOH JIIH JB PUBT  :josloid

o5 -m\m O;MMM e Qw Mu“,“ VNQI\\\\M\NQQ \M\ N Q%(U\\\ ‘ALTININGOT3IAIC T138E3IM ued
/0]

4 DO DR B 1 UG NG ORI DI T

PIOD 0 2eQ el :3{Rog

ONINNVId  ismyeis

(B R E BT TERRN
gy uy WeE WO s N
AN ,
. \\
poOOMSUBBNY
.‘\v
e
e
e
s
7
e
s
s
. s
. Ve
N\ s
. -

poomsbuly

SNOH

pPUOWIYDIY

porowR; kusoeg | ¥

EIV
: Goudimeac T sy

an0

26



e
10 LUIN U3 0} 10U ILLE HO TN ONNNY 14 19) POANUOR 3 Emon) 34|

00l -¢d 0cel -y dd
ey esys
V10T 120 ejeq 0oLt

ONINNV1d

Bupuoly
:oN Bug
:uoISIASY

:ajesg

snjelg

704/49 N%\w\ ‘T g.%v._&&Q

ueld Jusiaseg
sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
SS01) ‘SNOH |t 18 pue]

‘aL7 LNINJOTIA3A 113993

BpIL

:303f01g
Juald

T ) —
we w3 wy ws we wy

flom sivy Buoy
G 01 uoy

Y
we wz

a100 Uordmoaa ! sy

e 00!
wi 0

$9O0US BNIG BIGLAVO| X Gl
3001 ax3G BUAI0IS GO

NV1d LN3N3SVE

HO0LL X E

- 2CIS Uy

1en

27



sy g
> it

ue|d J00j4 puUNcIS) J8MoT el

[ ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
1Ol -2d 0221 -7l Q4 :onbu $S017) ‘OSNOH [iiH 18 puBT  :yoslord
o eeus v uomsmen "OLTANIWGOVIAIA 113863 auain
jJivaxe] 83 oottt BjRIS

ONINNYId  ismelg

Wowow oW W MW W W W W W MR W W W W WM W W oW .

iy iy wig we iy uiy we uiy wi @

NV1d 400714 ANNOYHD HIAMO

ST e By A\

uDpdinsed) . rey

28



v\] e . ue|d 1004 punoio L
10} iR QO 1D ¥ BUO AINO SISOMENG SNINNY 4 10} DINDX ;?H“.M QQ w aN CQ%M\ 2 G_NU@C_CCJW hUmom
. ] SS04D) ‘OSNOH |iIH 1B pueT  :osfoid
- - (4 :onbBig l& \ m ; \
oL -ed 0eel vl ,N MQ M N ‘AL INIAJOTIA3A 113893 awusid
(52 BEETT JUOISIASY
102 920 a1eq 00t 2jeog
ONINNVId  :smeis
' E TS REENEE RN ENERERERE N _Eyes
ws wg we w ws wy we wz
NV1d »007d ANNOHO
!
Buizoib 22540 ] y e Buipuny
! V o m sBunal W!u.r
] . ) =
il i
1 > | yososu |k ey
”H \E uioq E,Qm%wm" _z 4_ ] .
1 - f | i Buizoib 21105a0
\ 4~ g | jupssoesr |
. i wbs g st |
//ﬁ, 1oy
w.z \_ | =
= Xo.v:mcm@. é f i1 BuizoB 2105Q0
uayoy VA 9 = i
‘ | ﬁ B
BuIzolB 9112590 | " H
ZPaq i i |
m YOy | BuizoiB 9112500
3 !
o |
= —
™1 "" Buizoib 2:n25q0
] |
... 1 pag \\
=i i
20018} Buizo|b 21n25q0
|
i
| |
o.cc‘ UoRGI0saq | A0Y

29



b Ueld Jooy BRI
ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
$S0J)) ‘@SNOH ||IH 18 pueT  :jasloid

0l -zd0TTl -yl Q4 ‘onbia ’ \Q\
v eaus worsiwan /8 \\ 99 V4 Q%&\ ) \ &%@N\ Q ‘ALTININGOTIAIA T138E3X  swaud

y102 120 @ea Q0L+ ¢ 3jeog
ONINNVId  smeis

Illlllllllllllllllllll8._
oy A AT | RS =R
we wg wy we wsg wy we wz wr 0

NV1d 4004

ECHN Voudisag! mo¥

30

H
2



—
i v 1 a0 3 0 S 1030 SO , m\ UONeASIZ U0 oL
Sunes M é%.u\ 9 sjepbuluung ‘peoy
0Ll -2d402¢l-¥1 Qd w©nNBig Q ,& w\ NQQ &\ $S010 '8SNOH [IIH 1& PUET  :3osfoid
ey sy :uofsiAey NN ‘L7 ININOTIAIA 1139830 w0
y102 120 8jeq ocilL ojess
ONINNYId  :smeis
I'.Il....ll...'...l..l o0t
F}m wy w9 ws§ wy wg wr w 0
NOILLVAZ T3 LNOu4
|
H i
_ i |
3100 Gondissag | oy

31



20D
0, oS 1 G 1OV £ D0 AINO SISOGENG DPNNY g 10f PIDIPOR) 5 Bumu Sl

supuon

[11-2d02Cl -7l Q4 wonBia

704/ %N%\ 9y é&&

uoieAs|3 Yueld Y37
ajepbuluung 'peocy
SS0J)) ‘@SNOH ||IH 1e pueT]

"dLT LNIWNJOT3IA3A 113983

BRIL

:yosfoid
Jualo

€Y 399y 1ASY
710200 e 0011 :aje08
ONINNYId  :smels

'R EEE R E N BB RN B} BB R B B ]
et j2 = SR o]

ws wg w we ws wy we wy

1
515G voudiosag ! Aoy

NOILVATTE MNV1d L4371

aen

32



YO0
10; DU X3 O 10U % DU AN SI5OdUN ONINNY T 10; D0ONDOS > BumO 51

\ s TP, \\\K . UONEAD|3 JBOY  epiL

f— N nx%.\x lepbuiuung ‘peoy

Zll-2¢d0gcl -yl Q4 onba ,N%\u Q\\W % N DQ\ M\ \« $80.D ‘9SNOH IliH J& pueT  :osford
ov  nosus uoISMEY ‘L7 INIWJOT3AIA 1738831 awain

102 120 o5eq 0oL+ t aje0g
ONINNVYId  :smeis

'SR E RS SN EEN NS RERENENE R N N N B
] s I BCBETRE! e ¢
wé we we wy ws wy we we W 0

NOILVAZTE "v3d

2100 Gondiasag | Aok

“sion

33



woRatsu>
A3 01 10U U ATND STOUANG SNINNY T R0; PU0mDOXS s, BumaD sl

Bupuety

Ll -2d40zZl -yl Q4 onba
[ad REET IUOISIADY

7102420 Rl 00U 1 9jeag
ONINNYId  :snieis

7903/%97 %\w\

uonead|3 queld Wb epiL
ajepbuiuung 'peoy

T ﬁﬁ& \\ S$S0J0 ‘8SNOH ||IH Je pueT  :afoid

\ 9 \ "aL7INTNOT3AIA 1713683 auand

fam]
ws wg g we ws§ wy wg wy

EeN oidioag ! Aoy

i 0
wi o

NOILVATTI MNV1d LHOIA

34



NPPENDIX C .

83O 3 1 R R RS DD SIS DI N B (0

Bumucyy

GS-¢d0CZL -7l {d conbug
£y 199Us Y IUOISIASY

910z Wy eqQ 005 1 13je0g

ONINNVId  snyeys

d&\&%\ /|

4

JnoAe ajig pasodoid Bl
ojepbuiuung ‘peoy
$S010 ‘9SNOH |{iH J& PUET  :3osloid

‘ALl7 ININJOT12A30 113883 quand

B

BowE WE W VR SR MR OME BN M W VR W MR MR WM AW W W w

wisy gy e s w6z

panowns Ausoieg

e wsi it

poomsBuUy

N
35



-

3, i 503 G0 DU 4N SN SN 14 05 099706 .%:W_awm Mm_ d Juswaseg oL
. sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
00l -€40¢CL -yl Qd onbua 1\ M : 2)/ \\ $S0JD “@SNOH IlIH 18 PUBT  19f0id
ev  uedus uoISIAY “ “% N \\ % N wa% \ ‘GLTININJOTIAIA 113893 nwaud
9102 1oy 2leq 001 1 (g
ONINNYId  :smieis
R EEREREEEEEREEEERREE BB N .
SRR protey pr RGNS amemsmy 00U
ws wg wy we wg wy we wg wi [
NY1d LNJN3SVE
50204 041G DIOYDO} X D]
4001 3K BUMDOE OO
_
| :
| =]
! -
_ |
_ |
_ 1udjd M _
| _
| |
| _
| _
| _
_ _ M iy
200D0] S O U
_ _- 1
|
_ t
v 't (4 1 _
_
_
*
_
_
_
2109 uondiosag | a3y

36



o

ety

l0l-ed0cgl -v1 dd -onbua
£V BEEITEY Y luoIsiAsy
9107 dv ajeq 001: 1 ajeag

ONINNV1d  :smeig

17704/ b Lo/

1

ue|d J00|4 punois) Jamo oL
ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
S$S0J4D '@SNOH ||IH e pue  yosloigd

‘LT LINTNOT3AIA 1138939 sweio

ER-EEEEEEEETE S EEREDSREEREN]
e S L i 0001
we wg wy o

w, wy wg wy

Apnis

3

_

IRy @ouUDIUS

Ao

|
]
@@.

AQaor pusaiL

Z Ay

Guissaip

[
Prrrrng

s /261
os /691

L

1oy

91’5061

wnays gem Bumeloy | v
s0a" Uoydiasaq! Asy

L

NV1d 400714 ANNOYHO J3MOT

Apin

3bBunoy

RET

BYNSUD

1 pog

BussHIPH
Yy

Busson
sy

37



Bukvol

20l -€d 0L -7l Qd onbia
£V 1393Y4s 1U0}S|AY

9102 LAy 2leg 001 -1 2leag
ONINNVId  :smeis

ue|d JOo|4 punousy
sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
SS0J9) ‘9SNOH |iiH 18 pueT]

‘017 INSWHOT3A3A T13893M

g/ b/ 7 il

BIL

noafoid
Quaig

PR R EEEEREEE B2

B ) R Y
wie weg w wo ws wp we we
Buzng 202540
Buizob 9indsqo
2100 1 wonduosaq ! Ay

E N .
ausnuen 000!
wi 0

NV1d 40074 ANNOYED

ApOys

Buipuo;

1408 05/1
whs9p9l |

¥ 101d

=
1 1

{ |
| Hbs/zely
_Ec:.%_ |
| €10Wd
! i
| wou
I

Buizo|B 21550

BuissaIp

LB : BuizoB a:05q0

2UNSUD

Buizois 2100560

BuzoB v1DsQ0

200, &
ViSSP Buizo|b o1NDsGO

38



B 1100405 AINO SISO NI 0} D0 3 el iy UBjd JOO| isiid BRI
Someu - i ,w ; aepbuluung ‘peoy
€0l -ed 0Tt -¥l Q4 onBia 770 u\ b N /10 w\ N % & $SOJD ‘9SNOH [lIH 1€ PUET  30aloid
&y nesus UOISIATY ‘Al ININJOTIAIA 113893 usny
910z 1HdY  3leq 00!t 2|eag
ONINNVYId  :smeis
PR EEEREEEREEEEREEEEEREESEEER] .
VARG SN o A g 000
i wg wy wy we wy we wg wi 0
S NV1d J0014 1SHld
G LT
¢pag )
_. i LNSUD
4 M . .
- . Aen o «Vcwwmw,
-~ §101d
- - . _’ N ol
DPNSUD g ’
M oy
% | POG
22010} ¢ UDPIB Joor
! !
, m
: _ =
oo Condicsen | aa8

39



i 0,9 iK1 O] OV % BUO AINO IOGUN ONNNY I J0] DUInPOKS ,..ﬁ.“.,v_.,ﬂ
suwvens

70l -€d0TCL -7l Qd onbua

[N CE woisiAsy

9102 Havy =eq 00t 1 Blesg

ONINNYId  :smeig

2704/6¢ % g&&.\\\%

UE|d JOOy apiL
ajepBuiuung ‘peoy
SS0JQ ‘@SNOH [iIH 1B pueT  :1oafoig
‘L7 ININDOTI3A3A 1138839 uano

IR EEEEEEEREEE R ERN N5
P
w5 we we @y wg wy we we

ERX-R
foe
0

wi

wodNIs3a | A3y

oLt

NV1d 400d

-

40



0201 055 D1t SN SISO NN 10 D305 uoneAs|3 juol4 PpL
P ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
OlL-€d0Zcl -1 Q4 onbig $S0.D ‘8SNOH [liH 18 pueT  :josfoid
e nesys uoisiAY ‘L7 ININDOTIA3A 1139831 ausuo
9102 mdy eeq [o/e] ] 9jeds

ONINNVId  smeig

G ove WEOWE MR WY S TS @ BN N N 8 W 8 W W W oM W W
wg wg iy wy ws wy we g wi o

NOILVYAZT3 LNOYA

E N oudussag ! Ady
-

41



N

oo
00 01 (0 E DU AINQ) SISOUNS DNNNV I 10 U0 % SumOE WL

L1l-€d02CL -7l Qd wonbig
e REET uoisiAay

910 1Ay :ajeq oLt ;ajeog
ONINNYId  smeig

uoReAs|3 yuelq Yo7
ajepbujuung ‘peoy
SS0JD '9SNOH |IH 1. pue]

‘AL LN3INHOT3A3A 113983

BRL

1103f0id
quany

R EEETLEEEEEREEEERES B 5 B N

we we we we ws wr wg we

210G Gondudsaq! Aoy

NOILVAITI MNVYId 1437

42



~ — 1

107 B0 5 C1 10U PO AINO SIOFANS ONNNY 1A 10] DIDODO & BUNOD il

Bowezty

\ k m_o.am>w_m. Jeay epIL
. ajepbujuung ‘peo
Zll-€40221 -¥1 Q4 ‘onbig QN.QU\x\uml\\ Q\w\ N t%& Q $501) .m_.wﬂor ___Immemwﬂ sosloid

gy 399us wuoisiAgy ‘LT LNIWdOTIAIC T113993%  swang

910z ldy  aleq ool L Bl

ONINNVId  smieis

I EEE AL EEE R E RN RN % it
Pz SRR Pty IS s OV
we we we we ws wy wg wy wy °

NOILVATT3 ¥v3d

S

| i
) uonduosaq | AvY

43



uoianIaD
i 0, Dt 41 01 100 % DI ANQ) SISTANA DNINNY 14 105 0307000 § Sumon ALl

uoneAs|3 yueld by BRIL
suwuos 3 ajepbuiuung ‘peoy
€ll-€d02ZLl -7l Q4 :onbia \ \ N S«\x \ SS0ID '9SNOH [lIH J& pueT  :3foid
s worsimon 7703/ 6L 1O % ‘aL7 INSWJOTIAIA 7138833 suend
9102 Ay aeq 0011 :9|edg
ONINNYTd  smeig
\\W\.Ma\w\w%ﬁ&&ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%“&ﬂﬁﬁoo:_
.rm\, wg wg we wg wr we wg wy 0
NOILVAZTI MNVYT1d LHOIY

Goydnsag ! ey

auon

44



Frewis ap en 030 68 Gy 2% LG AR T et §

imsici

GG -lE0L -€1 MSd onbig

O g )
[ Nt UHERE v ]

ONINNY T

HIO [ ERAShy
BEUE

SRS

d&\w&%\\m\

Svellwad prop]

inafe sig posodold
ajepbunung peoy
SGOIL} "OSTIOH i 1@ puET

HOLVIHAA SHIN AONY XN

WS

g 5

fpeemo i D,

Voo S PO BT

BRI S Ny

ek DR RSN

Nl AR T ORI 32 OGS B e i kel

ana IR 5 DR TP |

g P2 i &

e’ S AR AL

P N

Parce

DOOMSUSINE

SNOH

DUOLLIORY

poomsBuiy

45



uoyaniuoD
301 Pt QO (00 APUD ANQ $350daNtd TNINNY 4 20} §2nP0xd 3 BupmoD T1

LOL -1€0L - €1 MSd :onbia
v L S OIS
ci/sz/zo :ajeq 00t 11 3jeag
ONINNYId  :smels

) and g AR
/ 0 \ $m 8S0ID .mm:OI ItH Je pueT :393fou
. w\\w & \\ w @N \ @ \\ — NOLYIHM SHIN ONY dIN uus__u

we wg g we ws wy we wz, wy

£1°20'v2 | porow Aoy ‘parowsds Auodjeq ‘popuawe waudky | ©
£L720%2 19UN02 &g pajsanbol e udYaRY 0F POPPE 8100Q Fl
£4°70°08 smopur afiuncl Bnus Jo uoppy | 3
R4 MOpuA UOYI 30 UOWPRY |
EL'Y06T AU JUDID 0F 23NNy PIPUOY | D
PRI SjUaLIWES JUAKA O} AUk papUSLY | @
oissaIBosd
£1'90'91 QWIAYIS PUB SIUBWIWICS JUIKD 0F JOYLA} POPUTWY v

2400 ' P

oot
o

NV1d 40074 ANNOYD J3MOT

{IoH souDLU3

W00y BuG

| s6oi08
sl op umop 5
B SILS 4

§40010

uBY DIy .

sagon

46



-

Lok i 5 01 104 36 4190 S350 BN 13 PSTBOS A Bumors UE|d 400]4 punoi9 BpL
Pa—" — slepbuiuung ‘peoy
201 -1E01L - €1 MSH :onbig Mv z N\Q\Nx\\g\&\ w\ SS0ID) ‘OSNOH jliH 18 pueT] :j8foid
& amus a  uoEna QN\Q,.\ & %N\Q NOLVYIHM SHN NV ¥IN - suand
£1/82/20 2eq oot aeas
ONINNYId  :smejg
ZmE R D E N RS DR R R aEE R
L~ x— — L [
W wg g we wg wy wg wz wi i
NV1d d00714 ANNOHEO
¥ apng
Buizoin
21N050
NS 1BISOW Buiss2ig
H
wWooog
Audog .
9]
i mc_ﬁu.am
,ﬁ
| sauns |
adouaL
| 1
£120%2 |  Panow Kauunya ‘pasowds ?S_E.Egus«:aﬁs_m a I
£1v082 SUDLILIOD JUB O3 JaYUNY PAPUALY | D
SUPOLL SUBLIWOS JuSyD of Jayun) popUOWY | @
uopssouBosd
E£LPOOL QWIS PUR SIUDLRKOD JUDD OF JIYUN; POPUIY v
EERN Concisaa ! Avg

47



N

]
10} P30 9Q @} JOU IPUD KN $35048Nd ONINNY 1 103 Poonport 3 SumoRp §uf

Bupuoly

UBIH JOOY  :apiL

S X sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
pOL -LE0L - €1 MS4 onBia 7704 \\ 907/0 \\ £/ val{1s 1V% N 5010 ‘BSNOH IIH 1€ PUET  393fosd
ey 3aays v uoIsmay

NOLVZHM SHN ONY dIA - suanio
cl/ez/co eeq ool 1 :afeos
ONINNYId  :smes

'R EE RN TR RSN N EREE N LB BN B | oot
L ] T NN [ [ :
we wg Wy wo wg wy we we wy 0

\\I/ > Z<|_n_ mOON_

Q.B.«L posous Aauui ‘ponowds Auoojeq "popuae uousyy | v
20g Gondinsag | rag

L

48



o e 963 (542 4SS XINGE S2POINS DRPRAIG 0 sdeRnnd

OLLAE0L €1 MSd onBig

£y aeeys >
SiBTizn  eieq Wit
ONINNV I

THOPSANY
i8pe0g
SHIg

7707

uoieAS[g JUOI4  eply
ojepbuiuung ‘peoy

$S0ID ‘BSNOH Yli 8 pue eloid
NOLVIHM SHN ONV EN suend

=

W WM MUY WU U R

g wip 23 i wy a
R HURLRBCO A QLAY RORURIY | 2
spira WERORAY R OF SRJUNE PRPURIY I3

vewpsafoid
sEwral BUSOE U SHIBLERIRK (URES O I pRoLsly ¥
B wsndeg| A0y

f S

NOILVATTE INOYA

Japusy

—t



|M|
T e T Sepbuiiung peot
LLLAE0L - €L MSd onBia vafl Woed %%H\ 55010 ‘9SMOH IIH 12 PUET a0fosd
$v  esys *3 uosIASY ﬁ%\ wQ N\ QM\\M‘ \ Mz\

NOLVIHM SHWN ONV HIN ey
sumEize eea IR wajess
ONINNYId  :smug

SR B, G
[ i [ wy WA P
NOLLVATTE MNV14 1437
o
Lo
13puay
T4 PEEY AT (UGS O} BRI PRy 3
TR SEGERID KO L ARPRY PogaOuyt g
unwes Bt
L FEL ST PUS SHBUAICD WM OF B Pepumary ]y
£y o RG] 208

R M



Bureusyy

ClLL-1E0L -€L MSJ onfua
£V 33sys a  uoispay
£1/82/20 aeq [l 19]e0s

ONINNVId  :smiegs

7704/ 907151

1ef] \\S&w% .mg.w wi

UoIens|] 1esy
sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
$S0JQ ‘9SNOH JIiH 1€ pue

NOLVIHM SN ANV dN

apLL

3oafoid
JUAD

YR E T P VR E RS B
ws we w wo wg iy wie

£1°20'Z | PIAGW ADUUAYD ‘PIACWRI Aucajeq papudLe uDyat | Q

L

€420 1#9unod Aq Pa19aNDbas S UIYIYY 0} POpPE BI00q | D

SUY0LL SHOWWED JUAYD O) 1YYNY PopuIY | @
uoissoBosd

£L0°91 2010423 PUE SIUAWWIOD UBYD O} Joupny papudwy | v

g Goyduosag | Asy

NOILVATN3 ¥v3yd

.

wajon



uaanisuon
194 P9iA 53 01 10U LPUR ANO SIIOIUNE ONINNYIG 10§ PEPNPO § BUYACI T}

Bupuoy

ELL-1E0L -€1 MSJ onBia
£v  3aayg 3 uolsinay
£1/82/20 :ajeg 0oL L :ajeag

ONINNVId  :smejs

uoneAs|a yueld by emiy
sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
$S0J0) ‘9SNOH [lIH 1B pue] :ssfoig

NOLVIHM SHW ONV 5N 5uai0

v AR TR

@i v EE WS WA BN W &g MY O B ONR N W Sy oM 3B
DI SN

Pz
we ws wiy we wg wr wg

{
|

SVI0VT|  POAOW AU 'Poaowar AUOdjeq ‘POpUIWE VDU | T

£450°08 wopup aBuncy /Bnus Jo owppy | @

£190°62 o

£LPOLL SIUAWA0D Walla 0) Jayuny popuawy | @
uoissabosd

ELP00L SWIBYIS PUB SUTUIOD WIBIID O} JAYURY PApURIWY | W

2500 Wmag | ARy

L

NOILLVATTE XNV1d LHOIA

52

ETN



51106l |

3, ot <3 4 1001 % PUD A TNE STSONG GV 107 D30

Ol Ocel - MSA
&Y neaug v
Y102 $20 leq 0011

ONINNVId

uejd JOO}- PUNOIS) JOMOT] PRI
orepbuiuung ‘peoy
oN Bug SS01D) ‘OSNOH [|IH e pueT  :osfoid
:uoISIAGY NOLVIHM SHIN ANV HA JusiD
1208
snyeys

pcrzasy P g
wg wy we iy

g

i
$1'10°9) Pania0Ds
SIUDLILIOD SIUDKD LYM DU U DPLU SJUDWPUBY

W W W m U

T4/ 16S £0, Y]

w R
w04
Wg wi 0

NV 1d J00T74 ANNOYO Jd3MO’T

AGQOT US|

@@::o_ﬁ_

oi3uno|

WS 96wt
¢101d

HOW

53

oYY

Uy

QUNSUD

e ﬁ

Buissap

&

Fussosn
si

v

@00

Gondiosag | Aoy



ue|d Jooj4 punolis WBpIL
slepbuiuung ‘peoy

Z01 0%Z1 -¥1 MSH :onBia SS0ID ‘@SNOH [liH 1B pue]  :3oefoig

NOLVIHM SHAN ONV HIA - suand

Y 399YyS D uoISIASY

8N NN Y 1d

Y10z 20 a3eq QoL 1 195808

ONINNYd  smeig 9007 \\“\% Cro \\\ /4

i wg wy we wy [ we wg
]
. — N
BuznB andsa0
APOLS ey
abunoy i
i Buipuo
Buizoib anosqo
BOYDHY Bussoip Bzl 0n85a0
............. ipog | 5
Buzo 9500 H e !\ B
11
T I SUZRIB GIN2SGO
Aw / |w YD
- m
) Aygnn i
S/ e
| Bussaip | il {Suizor o nosGo
Buizoi @ nosqo
!
| Butssaup
i | Buizob 5 Ndsa0 | BuizoB 8INdSA0
i i
W M am— =
| { iy e
i S1LQ'9L PONDDDS | e
511061 | SHIOWWED SIUBYO Ui AUN U DPEW SIUSWPYOWY | O

! vLOL L
1 04'0Z | PIAIDDDI SIUBLILIOS SIUOKD JOULA} DPew Suowpuawy | @
SHWOILICD SIUBYO OF oYY SLoWpLIWY |
! Gondinteq ! Aay




UOREAS|F JUOI4 PpL
alepbuiuung ‘peoy

OLL-0ZZL -7l MSd -onBua SSOIJ ‘OSNOH [lIH J& puet  josfoid
gy aesyg 3 woismey NOLVIHM SHIN ONY JN ausid
iz 00 83eqQ oGt RER:4 1

ONINNVId  smizsg .33&\\\ bS8 O \\ %\

NomE oS M W
nosswmy 000

RS EEEE NN
s ]
) wi uiz iug

NOILVAZTE INOHd




61 PO ING 0N DY G BE5AEG ¢ e

UOHBAZ|T Jeay epiL
- sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
2110221 -7l MSd onbug §S010 ‘©SNOH |iH 18 pueT  :josfoid
oy meeug 4 ooy NOLYIHM SHIN ONY dN uand
[glv Al a1eq ocli 12jeag
ONINNVId  smeig
02/ 16820./ Y]
%MWWM%«\N%&«&‘S.&&@&&&&&%&%%Kﬁ%@%o_
- 3 we g pu3 S [

paAoy
SRIGKIOD ST 03 SR

NOILVATTE dvdd

R

HoN




SO

LEL0C¢l -¥1 M

ey BEETIHN a
102420 aeg oot
ONINNYd

oN Bug

UOISIASY

sNyg

uoleAs|g jue| §o7 BPIL
alepbuiuung ‘peoy

SS0JD) ‘9SNOH {lIH 18 pue] :oafoid

NOLVIHM SHN GNY JAL - 8o

0/ 16880/Y/

we wy w9 ws wy

§1°10'94 PaA0DS |

SLLO6L SUOWLIOD SIUDYD UM BUR U PIW SUSWPLOWY | @
i oLOV L
P1'0L°0Z | PRMDDDI SIUDWILIOD SO JOYUNG PR SUBWPUILY | Y
ETtel

Uohdiea | aey

WEOBL W OVE SR RN M OWE WE MR ONR Y ORE RN W OB W2 o me o4 8 W

sy,
wi 0

NOILVAZITI MNV 14 L4371

N~
Lo

- - -
% HEARDS




1.9 a1 AT BN SIS uogeAs|3 sueld bRy £ T
afepbuiuung ‘peoy
€11 0ZC1 -¥1 MS4 oNBaa $S0J0) ‘9SNOH |IIH 18 puB  poaloid
&Y nedus O ooy NOLVIHM SHN ONV ¥ auaDd
7102490 #eq 00t + 1 91208
ONINNYId  :smesg \N&\\mw M %\\ w\
N&W&«Y@M&N&ﬁ&&&k@ﬂwﬁﬁ?&%@ﬁﬁw@&%%ﬁ%ﬁ 0t
wig - we wy e we wy wg wy wy 0

NOILVATIE MNV1d 1HOIA

|
| SL°L0'9L PAAKIODL
SIUIWLLCD SIS Yis 3Ul) UL SPRW SIIDWPLDWY o)
POADWD) WiEg a

SIUDUIUCD SIDNQ OF JOYUNG SIUDUPUSWY Y

106 |
vh 0L

Uoudsaa | AR

58



NPPENDIK F.

-

[ o 50 01 10w 35 A ORI SR8 91 OSPHS Biod uejd Jooj4 punolg Jamo BRI
s_,s_. Qmumc_cc:wﬁmom

LOL -0ZZ! -1 MSd :onBig $S010) ‘9SNOH |[IH 18 pueT  :osloig

&Y esys 4 luoISIABY ‘17 LININJOTIAIA 113883 Jusld
rloz 00 ieeq oot opeog .NN\Q.«.% MM \\@\xn\

ONINNVId  :smeig

NV1d 40074 ANNOYHO H¥IMOT

59

51°60°20 pappe jo01 uuswedy | §
SL'LO°9) Paniaoa
SLULO6L SIUOWILIOD SIUDI Y AUl U BPEW SUBwpUBWY | ¥

N Uoydiosag | Ady
anon



2010221 -¥1 MSd ronsia ﬁ%&\ww /10 \,W\
gy 3edys G :uoisiAey
102 420 eq 0oL alesg
ONINNVId  :smeis

-

Ue|d JOO[4 PUnoIs) Bl
olepbuuung ‘peoy
SS0JD) ‘9SNOH |iH 1B pue :posloid
‘L7 LNIWNJOT3A3C 1139938 weand

NV1d 40014 ANNOHO

ofuno|

Buizof 91N35a0

60

Buizoil 21n0sq0

BuizolB 0nosq0

An

PR EENXE D EETEY BN L
E ey fo ] 74
we we wy wy ws wy
a - - |
; £ paq
i
Buizo 91N 55y
ol © __ Aprus | — ey 4
Wﬁ |U Bupun
D | o TS
. HPSOS/L - — -
[SHate]
wbs oot [ —_
" = _
Y10 | |- — |
— - 4 bs /281
= - l'whos 7691
2 - |
oy : ﬁ | €101d
o . 3
7 n
Busssoip ! HOY
uByoLy e |
- ] |
I = |
1 pogy T =
Buizols 2N 2540 -
gpea DUNSUD
..... = r——7
| |
uing | |
| !
| I
| !
Buzols 2nsqO | |
| I
Zpag
Busssap
H BuUzolb 9IN$A0
i
sv0%0] Q E_II. e
S110'6 o _
PLOLOZ | POAIIO9) SIUBWIWOD SIUSHD JAYLING DPBW SIUDWPUILY a
vLOL9L SIUDLWLLOD SIUBKD O] JauNNy SJUOWPLOUY | Y
aleg | UoydIDSEG | A5y

D) sy

[
Buissosp _ _ Buzoil snsa0
Jral9]

o

| pag
DN,

Buissalp [T
Bzl 2N 25GO




-

§1L°E0'20

o4 o 5q 01

16U FPLO KNG SITOING DNINYIE K0} PONLON 5

wé

UBld J00j 1Sii4 PR
o sjepbuiuung ‘peoy
€01l 0TCL -1 MSd onbBig 27904/ 646110 .W\ $S0ID ‘9SNOH [IIH 18 PUET  :joafoid
oV eays Vv uoisiady ‘L7 LNINDOTIBA3A 113983 JusiD
SL/Z0/€0 ajeq ool t LT
ONINNVId  :smess
W w %W 7 W W W W ML WM BE W W WM W W OB W oW .
wg wy e ws wy we we wi o
NV1d JOO™1d LSHid
—i
(@)

poppe joo1 ujjuowniedy | v

Pl

CoRdmiad | moa

-



uoH o,
104 DA 93 01 40U B LY 4ING SFEOITd DNINNY1d 10| PIVNGOKS 2 BUMD.

Suvois
0LL 0TCl -7l MSd :onfBug
gv  8ays D uoISIA9Y
¥10Z 20 eg oL 1 :9jesg

ONINNY1d  :smejs

ﬁ&\@ 10/3]

uoneAs| Juol4
alepbuluung ‘peoy

SS010) ‘9SnOoH jIiH 1e pue]

‘aL7 ANIFNJOTIAIA 1713893

BRL

1309foid
JuayD

. f ) pa
wp wg wy wy wg wy we we

S1'E0'Z0 pappe joos utjuswedy | O
privo panoui yied | @
L0V 2L
PL0L°0Z | PINO0) SIUBUILOD SILSID JOUWN) APRW SIUAPUSWY | ¥
+
3100

wi

aotil

NOILVATT3 LNOdA

Aoy

|

.



uoHeD

L

101 A 9A 03 10U YPLD KO TIIOMNE ININN Y 701 IS0 & BUmOR St

P
LEL-0ZZL -¥1 MSH :onbig
ev jasys jo] IUOISIARY
vlozio0  :aseq 00t L :aje0g

ONINNVId  :smels

ﬁ&\&tg\&w\

-

uoleAS[3 yueld Yo7 [
sjepbuuung ‘peoy
$S0ID ‘@SNOH jiiH j8 pueT  :palfoid
‘AL ININDOTIAIA 1139931 uand

VEEEEEREEBNBEEREEEEES T I EERR]

wg wg wy ws ws wy wg we wi [
51780720 PIPPE JOOI U JUaLpedy )
51°10°9} PaA@IDY
SL10'6L SIUBLILIOD SIUBD YiM SUl| U DPBW SUBUIPpUSWY | @
pL0L 2L
VL°CL'0Z | POAOR] SHUBWWIOD SIUSD JBYMN; IPEW SWAWRLAWY | v
T
o0

uoydusaq’ Aoy

001

NOILVAITA MNY1d L4317

63




ueonOs

101 PO 4G OF 15U SHLD AING SIFOINNY DNIN Y14 101 DTTOVOIE 8 BLwmDR) SUL uoneAs|g Jesy PpL
Bupunly

- \ sepbuiuung ‘peoy
- :oN B ‘ :
ZLL0CCl -1 MS4 onBug 2% 4 ® m / \@ W $S0I0) ‘aSNOH IfiH je pueT  :osloid

£V Jeays D UOISIAY ‘L7 INIWJOTIAIA 7113993 JUBID
10T 0 33eg Qot 0L :ajesg

ONINNVId  :smeis

Y EES R ER R EREE N RN N
W i SR g 0041
96 wg wy wp ws wy we uz wy 0

NOILVAT T dv3d

SL'E0Z0 poppe joos ) uawedy | o
vULL0L porowsiied | 8
v10 SUaWWOD SO o) Joyuny Suawpuawy | v

uopdiuasaq ! Aay



VoD

101 IO B3 01 (GU TPV KNG $IEOANG ONINN Y14 I0] SAZNOOIG 3 EUMDD WL

Busoty
elL-0¢Cl -v1 MSd :onbBug
€Y jaays a  uoIsiney
Y107 120 ajeq [ols] A1 1ajesg

ONINNVId  :smess

09/ b6 110/ C |

uoneAa|3 yueld 1By
afepbuluung ‘peoy
SS010) ‘9SNOH {|IH Je pue

‘L7 INIFNJOTIAIA T13993M

-

BplL

3oaloid
JuLl)

R EREEEEERERXESERES S 52 55 5 JEwn
v SRR RSN 22 U g
we we wy we ws wy we wy wy 0

SL'E020 poppe joos Ut uewedy | G
SL10'9) PINB3DI

SHUOWUOD SIUDD QM Ul Ul 3pEW SUBWPURLY | O

paowsi wed | @

iAW SIUSHA O] BN SuBwpLaWY | Y

Gondimsaq | aoa

NOILVATTE MNV1d LHOY

65



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

29 June 2016 ltem: 3

Application 16/01127/FULL

No.:

Location: Sandhills And Sandhills Cottage And The Sunningdale Osteopathic Sandhills Cottage
Cross Road Sunningdale Ascot

Proposal: 2 No. new dwellings with basement, garage and associated landscaping following
demolition of existing 2 No. dwellings and associated garaging.

Applicant: Mr Smith

Agent: Mr Ben Willcox

Parish/Ward:  Sunningdale Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Claire Pugh on 01628 685739 or at
claire.pugh@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

11 The application site is situated within the townscape of ‘Leafy Residential Suburbs’ within the
townscape assessment. The character of the area tends to comprise large detached dwellings
situated in fairly spacious plots. The dwellings in the area are two and two have storey in height.

1.2 The proposed dwellings would be two and a half stories in height, with crown roofs. However, the
size of the crown roofs have been reduced and it is not considered that they would look overly
bulky in the context of this large site. The dwellings are of a mock Georgian design and they are
considered to be of an acceptable design within this area. The building to plot ratio on both plots,
would be larger than some of sites within the local area. There is considered to be sufficient
spacing between the dwellings and the boundaries for the development to fit in with this
townscape.

1.3 It is not considered that the proposal would result in any adverse impacts on neighbouring
properties, and there is sufficient space on the driveway to accommodate at least 3 cars, with
space for visitors or tradesmen to park.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Hilton if the recommendation is for approval, for the reason that
the Neighbourhood Plan Delivery Group has concerns over the size of the proposed
development, the impact on the character of the area, the terracing effect, the limited garden
areas and the inadequacy of the drainage proposals.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

3.1 The site comprises three buildings; Sandhills (a detached dwelling), a detached garage (with
floorspace in the roof), and Sandhills Cottage (a fairly narrow detached two storey building) which
is used as an independent dwelling. The buildings are not particularly imposing with the
streetscene, owing to the fairly low eaves heights and style of roofs. There is strong tree and
landscaping cover along the site boundaries, particularly along the south, east and western
boundaries.

3.2 The style of houses in the area varies, but they tend to comprise two storey or two and half storey
dwellings. The dwellings tend to be set in ample plots. The area is characterised as ‘Leafy
Residential Suburbs’ within the Townscape Assessment. The key characteristics of ‘Leafy
Residential Suburbs’ are:

i.  Low to medium density residential suburbs with characteristic ‘leafy’ streets.

66



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

53

5.4

Built form is defined by suburban style detached two storey houses, on medium to large plots.

A variety of architectural styles, reflecting a range of periods, includes early 20™ century
houses (including Victorian, Edwardian, and Arts and Crafts style), plus more recent
development.

The leafy suburban character is reinforced by well established private gardens (including
mature trees/shrubs), that are often bounded by tall beech or laurel hedges.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description Decision and Date

15/02799/CLU | Certificate of Lawfulness to determine whether the | Permitted on the 5™
use of the first floor and part ground floor as a | November 2015.
separate dwelling is lawful.

The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing buildings on site, and
the erection of 2 new dwellings, with basements and garages. The dwelling on plot one would
have an attached garage which projects forward of the dwelling; the garage would have parapet
walls with a shallow roof. The dwelling on plot two would have a detached garage located to the
side of the dwelling; this garage would have parapet walls with a shallow roof. Two existing
accesses of Cross Road would be utilised to serve each of the dwellings. Existing trees and
hedging on the boundaries would be retained.

The dwellings would have a height of circa 9.8 metres, and a height to the eaves of 6 metres.
The dwellings would have crown roofs, although the size of the crown roofs has been reduced
from that shown in the originally submitted plans. The walls of the dwellings would be finished in
a white render. Each dwelling would have small flat roof dormer windows within the roofspace.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION
National Planning Policy Framework Sections:

Paragraphs 60, 61 and 64- Design

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways and
settlement area Parking Trees
DG1, H10, H11 P4, T5 N6

Supplementary planning documents
Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:
e Sustainable Design and Construction

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

67



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

° RBWM Townscape Assessment — view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

) RBWM Parking Strategy — view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i. Impact on the character and appearance of the area;
. Impact on neighbouring occupiers;

iii. Impact on trees;

V. Parking and highway safety;

V. Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area;

Impact on the character and appearance of the area

In terms of the proposed height of the dwellings, these will be higher than the neighbouring
dwelling (The Coach House), which is around 7.5 metres in height. Given the spacing (5 metres)
between the proposed dwelling (at two storey height) on plot one, with the neighbouring
boundary, it is considered the proposed height of the dwelling would be acceptable. Also, corner
plots can sometimes accommodate taller buildings as it can help emphasise the corner within the
streetscene. In addition, Derry House (on Ridgemount Road) is of a larger scale, and this forms
part of the local character of the area.

As acknowledged the style of dwellings varies within the local area, and there is a mix of
materials. The proposed design of the dwellings is considered to be acceptable within the area.
Dormer windows are present in the locality, and the dormer windows are considered to be
acceptable in this case. The use of render is evident within the local area. The proposed
dwellings are similar in design, as they are both mock Georgian, however, there are differences
between them. It is not considered that the two dwellings of a similar design would harm the
character of the area.

The proposed development is considered to fit in with the townscape of ‘Leafy Residential
Suburbs’. A gap of around 13 metres would be provided between the two dwellings. The
detached garage on plot 2 would be situated in between these two dwellings, but would be kept
lower in height at around 3.2 metres, and would have parapet walls with a shallow pitched roof.
As such, this garage will not close the gap between these two dwellings when viewed in the
streetscene. There would be a gap of circa 8 metres between the dwelling on plot 2 and the site
boundary to Ridgemount Road. There would be gap of around 5 metres of the dwelling on plot
one and the side boundary. Although the single storey garage on plot 1 would be built close up to
the boundary, the existing building already is. The resultant plot sizes would not be smaller than
nearby plots like the Coach House and the Belfry, and whilst smaller than The Garth, Kingshill
House and other plots in the area, it is not considered that that the plots would be of a size that
would be out of keeping in the area.

The garage on plot 1 will sit forward of the main dwelling, however, there is an example of this
within Cross Road, and so it is not considered that this would be out of keeping in the area. The
proposal is considered to comply with Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DG1 and NP/DG2.

Impact on neighbouring occupiers

The Coach House is situated to the west of the application site. No windows are proposed in the
north west elevation of the dwelling on plot 1 which would face the Coach House. This elevation
would not overlook the immediate private amenity space to this dwelling, in addition, there would
be a distance of in excess of 21 metres between the first floor side elevation of the new dwelling
and the first floor elevation of the Coach House, which is a more than reasonable distance for

68


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

6.12

6.13

there not to be unacceptable levels of overlooking into windows. First floor side windows in this
elevation could provide views into the garden area of The Belfrey, and so for that reason, a
condition is recommended to prevent first floor and second floor side windows being inserted
without approval (see condition 9). Given that the new dwelling on plot 1 would be 5 metres off
the side boundary, and taking into account the relationship of this new building with the Coach
House, and the Belfry, it is not considered that the proposed dwelling would be unduly
overbearing to either of these properties.

There would be a gap of 16 metres between the rear elevations of the proposed dwellings to the
boundary with Kingshill House; this is considered to be a sufficient distance for there not to be
unacceptable levels of overlooking to this property or its garden.

Impact on trees

A Tree Preservation Order (TPO) 043/2011/TPO covers Lime trees and two horse chestnut
close to the rear boundary of the site, but these are within Kingshill House. These trees are
outside of the application site, but tree protection fencing would be put in place to protect these
trees during construction. A cypress tree (T5) and some shrubs within the site will be removed to
accommodate the development. All trees and hedging on the boundaries of the site will be
retained, and additional soft landscaping is proposed. The development is considered to be
acceptable in this respect. Given the proximity to the dwelling on plot 2 to the protected trees, it
is considered necessary to remove permitted development rights for this dwelling, as otherwise
the building could have an unacceptable relationship with these trees (see condition 11).

Parking and highway safety

Two existing accesses which serve the site off Cross road which is an unclassified road would be
utilised. It is not considered that two new dwellings would generate a significant level of traffic
which would cause detriment to highway safety.

Each of the dwellings would have space on the drive to park at least 3 cars (which complies with
the standards of the Council’s parking strategy), with additional space for vehicles of tradesman.

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

The Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (the SPA) was designated in 2005 to protect
and manage the ecological structure and function of the area to sustain the nationally important
breeding populations of three threatened bird species. The Council’'s Thames Basin Heaths SPD
sets out the preferred approach to ensuring that new residential development provides adequate
mitigation, which for residential developments of between one and nine additional housing units
on sites located over 400 metres and up to 5 kilometres from the SPA, is based on a combination
of Strategic Access Management and Monitoring (SAMM) and the provision of Suitable
Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG). The application site is within this 0.4 — 5km buffer zone
around the SPA.

The Council has an adopted Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG), Allen’s Field.

As of the 6™ April 2015 the Council can no longer secure pooled developer contributions. SAMM
and SANG contributions will be covered by condition to make provision for the delivery of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) and for provision towards Strategic Access
Management and Monitoring (SAMM). This is to ensure that the proposed development would
not have a significant adverse effect on a European site within the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2010.

A Lawful Development Certificate was granted on the site which confirmed that the use of the
first floor and part of the ground floor of Sandhills Cottage as a separate dwelling was lawful. As
such two independent dwellings exist at the site, and the proposal would not result in a net gain
of dwellings. As such, mitigation against the impact on the Special Protection Area is not
required.

69



6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

Other matters

In respect of biodiversity improvements, the site has mature vegetation with large trees to all
boundaries. It is proposed to protect the existing trees and hedges that are proposed to be
retained and the agent is proposing to install some bird boxes to further encourage wildlife onto
the site and increase biodiversity.

The building is not Listed, and there is no objection to the loss of the buildings on site.

The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (CIL Regulations) which came in force on
the 6 April 2015, allows the Council to raise funds from developers undertaking new building
projects in the borough to support and fund new infrastructure that the Council and local
communities may require. However, planning obligations may still be sought to mitigate local
impact if they are still necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms provided
that the obligations meet the tests outlined in the CIL Regulations. In this case planning
obligations would not be sought as there are not any identified projects that would not meet the
tests set out in the CIL regulations at Regulation 122.

An objection is raised from the Local Lead Flood Authority, who requires additional information on
drainage. The agent has been asked to address these comments, however, this site is not within
an area at risk of flooding, and it is not a major planning application, and so the applicant is not
required to provide information on Sustainable Drainage.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

8 occupiers were notified directly of the application.
The planning officer posted a site notice advertising the application at the site on 19" April 2016.

9 letters were received objecting to the application (to the originally submitted plans), summarised
as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | Gross overdevelopment of the site. 6.2-6.5
2. | The dwellings would be out of keeping with the area. 6.2-6.5
3. | Overlooking and overbearing impact to the Coach House. 6.6
4. | The dwellings would have a very large footprint, would be very high and | 6.2-6.5

would have bulky crown roofs- they would look out of keeping with
nearby houses.

5. Proposal fails to accord with a core principle of the NPPF to always | 6.2-6.5
secure a high quality design.

6. | Animportant feature of this area is the low density housing set in large | 5. 2-6.5
plots of a traditional two storey height and varied and interesting
architecture. The proposal, in contrast will harm the character by
introducing two overly large houses squeezed onto a plot.

7. | Proposal conflicts with policies NP/DG2 and NP/DG3 of the|g 265
Neighbourhood Plan.

g. | The garages set forward of the dwellings would conflict with | g 2.6 5
Neighbourhood Plan Policy.

9. | Whilst the proposed plot sizes at Sandbhills will be similar to some | g 2.6.5
others in the vicinity, the proportions of the proposed housing is grossly
out of scale with the plot size.

10. | There is insufficient space between the proposed dwellings. 6.2-6.5

70



11. | Development would demonstrably harm the character of the area. 6.2-6.5
12. | The agent's description of the buildings on the existing site is | Noted.
misleading.
13. | The omissions of dimensions are misleading. Noted.
14. | Substantial loss of garden space is unacceptable. 6.2-6.5
15. | Loss of biodiversity. 6.14
16. | Referencing Derry House is misleading as it sits on a much larger plot | g 2
and overlooks the golf course.
17. | The sheer scale of the proposal would reduce sunlight to the garden of | g g
the Belfry.
18. | Unacceptable overlooking to the Belfry. 6.6
19. | Unacceptable generation of traffic. 6.9-6.10
20. | The proposed dwellings are too similar in design, which is not akin the | g 2_6.5
character of the area.
21. | Loss of period house and cottage is unacceptable. 6.15
22 | Highway safety concerns. 6.9-6.10
Other Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways: Verbally advised no objection to the plans (based on the | 6.9-6.10
increase in the area of hardstanding).
Neighbourhood (Comment on the amended scheme) See main
Plan Delivery o o report.
Group: -This is a good example of an application that looks very

different when viewing the plans on paper vs when seeing
the site as it is in reality and in the context of the
neighbourhood.

- This section of Cross Road and Ridgemount Road
consist of all individually designed houses of mixed style
and size and of distinctive character, in an area
designated as ‘Leafy Residential Suburb’. It is precisely
the type of area that our Neighbourhood Plan policies
seek to protect.

- This scheme is for two “twin” houses of virtually identical
design, still of considerable scale and mass, in close
proximity to each other, and positioned formally side by
side. The two buildings, in combination, will have an
impact that will be totally out of character with the
appearance and style of the surrounding area.

- Recognise that the applicant has made considerable
efforts in the amended plans to reduce the footprint of
both houses and the impact of the garage blocks, and
these are welcome improvements. Unfortunately this does
not address the core issue that this scheme fails to comply
with policy NP/DG1.1 6 which requires development
proposals to “comprise high quality design and seek to
demonstrate how they will enhance the character of the
local area”. This scheme will be highly detrimental to the
character and appearance of the area.




Parish Council:

The 2 dwellings are too large for the plot, which is out of
keeping with the character of the area. The two dwellings
of the same appearance will result in the terraced effect.
Garages forward of the build line are not in keeping with
the character of the area. S106 contributions should be a
consideration. The plans do not show the loss of Tree 5,
and there concerns over drainage.

See main
report.

SPAE:

The proposal is out of character with the area. The
proposal would result in two very large dwellings, of the
same design, positioned closely together. There is no
other example of this in the area. Being corner plot, these
dwellings will be very prominent, and this will adversely
impact on the streetscene.

Proposal conflicts with Neighbourhood Plan policies.

See main
report.

Local Lead
Flood Authority:

| would expect the applicant to meet the following
conditions from the Non-statutory technical standards for
sustainable drainage systems:

S3 For developments which were previously developed,
the peak runoff rate from the development to any drain,
sewer or surface water body for the 1 in 1 year rainfall
event and the 1 in 100 year rainfall event must be as
close as reasonably practicable to the greenfield runoff
rate from the development for the same rainfall event,
but should never exceed the rate of discharge from the
development prior to redevelopment for that event.

S5 Where reasonably practicable, for developments
which have been previously developed, the runoff
volume from the development to any highway drain,
sewer or surface water body in the 1 in 100 year, 6 hour
rainfall event must be constrained to a value as close
as is reasonably practicable to the greenfield runoff
volume for the same event, but should never exceed
the runoff volume from the development site prior to
redevelopment for that event.

S7 The drainage system must be designed so that,
unless an area is designated to hold and/or convey
water as part of the design, flooding does not occur on
any part of the site for a 1 in 30 year rainfall event.

S8 The drainage system must be designed so that,
unless an area is designated to hold and/or convey
water as part of the design, flooding does not occur
during a 1 in 100 year rainfall event in any part of: a
building (including a basement); or in any utility plant
susceptible to water (e.g. pumping station or electricity
substation) within the development.

S9 The design of the site must ensure that, so far as is
reasonably practicable, flows resulting from rainfall in
excess of a 1 in 100 year rainfall event are managed in
exceedance routes that minimise the risks to people
and property.

The applicant is also required to give a maintenance
regime for the drainage proposals.

6.17

72




8.

Council’'s Tree
Officer:

There is a group of Lime and Horse chestnut trees
along the northern boundary of Kingshill House,
immediately to the south of the site. These are covered
by TPO 043 of 2011.

The site itself contains few trees of merit, though the
three Purple leaved plums adjacent to the boundary by
Ridge Mount Road are important due to the lack of
larger trees here. They provide some softening to the
existing built form and add a little to the sylvan
character of the area. There is a group of semi-mature
Birch in the rear garden of plot 1. However, there will
be pressure in future to remove a number of these trees
to provide a larger open garden area.

My main concern is in relation to the shading of plot 2
that will be caused by the group of TPO trees. They are
mature trees and sections of the garden will be under
heavy shade during mid morning through to mid
afternoon, when the trees are in leaf. A few of the rear
ground floor rooms will also be similarly affected.
However, | note the amended plan does increase the
breadth of the plot and reduces the size of the building
slightly taking it further away from the southern
boundary. This will ease the shading issue. However,
permitted development rights will need to be removed
from plot 2, to prevent development that is otherwise
likely to cause an unacceptable relationship with the
trees.

There is an opportunity for some new planting to
mitigate the loss of other vegetation and soften the
impact of the two large buildings. In particular, tree
planting in the front gardens will soften the built form
and enhance the sylvan character from Cross Road.

On balance, there are no objections to the proposal
subject to conditions for:

details of tree protection to be submitted,

retention of trees,

details of landscaping,

removal of permitted development rights for plot 2.

00 ~N O Ol

6.8

Natural
England:

Comment that they do not consider the proposal would
adversely impact on Internationally or Nationally
designated sites.

They advise the LPA should consider biodiversity
enhancements and protected species.

6.11-6.14

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A — Site location plan

e Appendix B — Proposed site layout

e Appendix C — Elevations and Floor plans

73




This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

Prior to the commencement of any works of demolition or construction a management plan
showing how demolition and construction traffic, (including cranes), materials storage, facilities
for operatives and vehicle parking and manoeuvring will be accommodated during the works
period shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan
shall be implemented as approved and maintained for the duration of the works or as may be
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local
Plan T5.

Prior to the construction of the dwellings hereby approved, samples of the materials to be
used on the external surfaces of the dwellings shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Local Plan policy DG1 and
Policy NP/DG3 of the Neighbourhood Plan.

Prior to the construction of the dwellings hereby approved, details of all finished slab levels in
relation to ground level (against OD Newlyn) shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out and maintained in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason:In the interest of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policy Local Plan DG1.

Prior to the construction of dwellings hereby approved, full details of both hard and soft
landscape works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
and these works shall be carried out as approved within the first planting season following the
substantial completion of the development and retained in accordance with the approved details.
If within a period of five years from the date of planting of any tree or shrub shown on the
approved landscaping plan, that tree or shrub, or any tree or shrub planted in replacement
for it, is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, or becomes seriously damaged or
defective, another tree or shrub of the same species and size as that originally planted shall
be planted in the immediate vicinity, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its prior written
consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure a form of development that maintains, and contributes positively to,
the character and appearance of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, Neighbourhood
Plan Policy NP/DG3 and Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/EN2

Prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being brought onto the site, details of the
measures to protect, during construction, the trees shown to be retained on the approved plan,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
measures shall be implemented in full prior to any equipment, machinery or materials being
brought onto the site, and thereafter maintained until the completion of all construction work and
all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site.
These measures shall include fencing in accordance with British Standard 5837. Nothing shall
be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the ground levels
within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without the written

74



10.

11.

12.

consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

No tree or hedgerow shown to be retained in the approved plans shall be cut down, uprooted or
destroyed, nor shall any retained tree be lopped or topped other than in accordance with the
approved plans and particulars or without the prior written approval of the Local Planning
Authority, until five years from the date of occupation of the building for its permitted use. Any
topping or lopping approved shall be carried out in accordance with British Standard 3998 Tree
work. If any retained tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies, another tree shall be
planted in the immediate vicinity and that tree shall be of the same size and species unless the
Local Planning Authority give its prior written consent to any variation.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan
DG1, N6. Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/ENZ2.

The hard surface of the access road and parking spaces shall be made of porous materials and
retained thereafter or provision shall be made and retained thereafter to direct run-off water from
the hard surface to a permeable or porous area or surface within the curtilage of the property.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and pollution and increase the level of sustainability of the
development and to comply with Requirement 5 of the Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead
Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning Document.

No window(s) shall be inserted at first floor level or above in the north western elevation(s) of the
dwelling on plot 1.

Reason: To prevent overlooking and loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers. In accordance
with the NPPF.

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking spaces have been provided in
accordance with the approved drawing. The spaces approved shall be retained for parking in
association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A and E of part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement, improvement or any other
alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building within the curtilage) of or to the dwelling
house on plot 2 the subject of this permission shall be carried out without planning permission
having first been obtained from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: Any further development within this plot would need to be carefully controlled given the
proximity of the building to protected trees. Local Plan policy N6 and Neighbourhood Plan policy
NP/EN2 of the Ascot, Sunninghill, Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan.

Condition Approved Plans.

75



Appendix A- Site location

Vi ome H.J‘.L;ﬁ“:' | 411

Sunningdate
Lacses Golf Club

76



Appendix B- Proposed Layout

2
:
H

willcox. .«mueilwes

Appendix C- Elevations and Floor plans

Plot 1

willcox.»ameilwe

- Do ¢ et o
— —

in n om



Elevation facing Cross Road

willcox..cmeilwes

v e— =
O > L L1 St e ey P—
b i~
om im 10m = - - - - L
T T ————— N - =
L T RILA &

Side elevation facing within site

willcox...meilwes

Tee
L m Rl
S el —— —
A

Rear elevation

/8



Side elevation facing the Coach House

79

.



Floor plans

80

!

Basement level



Ground floor

81



First floor

82



Second floor

Roof plan

T

2 an t
Sl
p=fl--pog |

—
—/ 1
|

™y =

el

bd

=

83




willcox...meilwes

Facing Cross Road

...\

I
"
!

willcox...meilwes
% i i = _Z
e e e S— S T T R
Facing Ridgemount Road

84



Proposed rear Elevation

willcox..omeilwes

——
| L P B S S
— - —

| -

L - o . r-ew
- — - —

| s . - e

| e nnAs

o m im

W

Proposed side elevation (facing within site)

85




Floor plans

Basement plan

Ground floor

86



-——

I

First floor
Second floor

87



Roof plan

88

[]

Nt 7

[l




WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

29 June 2016 ltem: 4

Application 16/01165/FULL

No.:

Location: Mandalay Burleigh Road Ascot SL5 8ES

Proposal: Two storey rear, single storey rear, single storey front infill, first floor side extensions,
conversion of loft to form additional habitable accommodation, 3 rear and 2 front roof
lights and amendments to fenestration.

Applicant: Mr Forster

Agent: Mr Sam Jones - IDS

Parish/Ward:  Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Adam Jackson on 01628 796660 or at
adam.jackson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

3.1

4.1

4.2

SUMMARY

The proposed extensions are considered to be of a scale and design which are in keeping with
the host dwelling and the street scene in general. In addition it is considered that the extensions
will have an acceptable impact on the amenity of neighbouring properties. Sufficient car parking
can be provided on the driveway and subject to suggested conditions the impact on important
trees is also acceptable.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION
* At the request of Councillor David Hilton on behalf of the Parish Council.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The site is located on the eastern side of Burleigh Road in Ascot. The site is located in a
residential area classified within the townscape assessment as an executive residential estate.
The application property is a 2 storey detached house mainly of brick construction with partial
white render and hung tiles and a pitched tile roof. The properties in the area are 2 to 3 storey
detached properties which vary in style, size and materials.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Reference Description Outcome

15/04267/FULL | Single storey rear extension, single storey front | Withdrawn 11.03.2016
infill extension, first floor side extension,
conversion of loft to form additional habitable
accommodation, 3 rear dormers and 2 front roof
lights with replacement garage following
demolition of existing garage and amendments to
fenestration.

The proposal is similar to the previous application (15/04267) which was withdrawn. The proposal
is for a part two storey part single storey rear extension, a first floor side extension and the
conversion of the loft into habitable accommodation.

The proposed first floor and two storey rear extensions are on the south side of the property
above and extending behind the existing attached garage. The extension matches the existing
ridge height of the property which is 8 metres and will be half hipped to match the existing roof
design. The two storey rear extension extends approximately 3 metres beyond the existing rear

89



4.3

4.4

51

5.2

6.1

6.2

6.3

wall of the garage, however, does not extend beyond the existing rear elevations of the house.
The extension also will not extend beyond the side elevation of the garage.

The single storey rear extension is 4 to 5 metres deep (4 metres along the north boundary shared
with Ararat House), has a height of 3.2 metres and an eaves height of 2.6 metres. Prior to
receiving amended plans the extension was 5 metres along this boundary.

In order to accommodate the loft extension 5 Velux windows are proposed, 3 of these are to the
rear and 2 to the front. Dormer windows were proposed to the rear under the previous
application.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Parking
Within and
settlement | Highway | Protected
area Safety Trees
v v v
Local Plan DG1, H14 P4 and N6
T5
Neighbourhood | DG1, DG2 T1 EN2
Plan and DG3

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

¢ RBWM Landscape Character Assessment
o RBWM Parking Strategy

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

i. The impact on the character and appearance of the area

i The impact on neighbour amenity

iil. The impact on trees important to the area

iv. The impact on parking

The impact on the character and appearance of the area

The proposed single storey extension is 4 to 5 metres deep and is 12 metres wide, extending
along the rear elevation of the main dwelling. The extension is just 3.2m tall and has been
designed to closely match the existing dwelling. The scale is considered proportionate to the
main dwelling and sufficient space remains to the rear (12 metres) and to the side (2.5 metres) to
prevent the extension being cramped or resulting in an overdevelopment of the site. The

extension would not be visible from public vantage points.

The two storey/first floor side and rear extension would mostly be above the existing garage with
only a small amount extending to the rear which helps to reduce the bulk. The ridge height

90



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

matches the existing dwelling and is half hipped to match the design of the existing property as
well. As with the single storey extension sufficient space remains to the side (4 metres) and to
the rear (17 metres) to prevent a cramped appearance or overdevelopment of the site. Within the
street there are a number of large detached houses and it is not therefore considered that the
enlarged Mandalay would appear out of keeping.

The Velux windows are considered acceptable within the street scene and it is proposed for the
materials of the extension to closely match the existing dwelling.

The impact on neighbour amenity

Objections have been raised from Ararat House who are concerned that the single storey rear
extension will cause a loss of light to their property and will appear overbearing and enclose their
rear garden. Ararat House has a living room which runs along the south side of their house; this
living room has a large rear facing window which is approximately 5 metres from Mandalay’s
proposed single storey extension and the 60 degree light angle test is complied with. In addition
to this there are also glass double doors which face north where the lounge extends beyond the
rest of Ararat House, although north facing these doors do provide some additional light to
Ararat’s living room and will not be affected by Mandalay’s single storey extension. It is accepted
that Ararat House is set lower than Mandalay by approximately 1.5 metres; however, this is only
to the immediate rear of the house with the rest of the rear garden being at a level which is
comparable to Mandalay. Mandalay’s proposed single storey extension is only 3.2 metres tall
(2.6 eaves), has a depth of 4 metres and is set approximately 2.5 metres from the side
boundary. In addition Ararat House’s garden is 16 metres wide and has a depth of 15 metres
and the main patio area is 8.5 metres from the proposed extension. It is not considered therefore
that the proposed extension would appear significantly overbearing to Ararat House. Concerns
were also raised that there would be a loss of light to Ararat Houses’ front garden, however, the
changes to the front of Mandalay are minor and any loss of light would therefore be non material.
In addition front gardens are not afforded the same level of protection as a rear garden/main
amenity area.

Concerns have also been raised that the rear facing Velux windows will cause a loss of privacy.
This concern has been raised by 17 The Burlings which is located to the rear (east). There are 3
rear facing Velux windows proposed, in general Velux windows are less intrusive than
windows/dormer windows and in this case they will be set 17 metres from the rear boundary. In
addition there are already 3 windows and 2 Velux windows at first floor level which face towards
17 The Burlings and it is not considered that 3 additional Velux windows above this would
significantly increase the existing overlooking or result in a level of overlooking that would not
normally be expected in a residential area.

Due to the separation distance (approximately 18 metres) it is not considered that the first floor
side extension would impact on the amenity of Topple Cottage to the South. It is also not
considered that there would be any significant adverse effect to the sites opposite, which are
over 20 metres away.

Concerns have been raised over the garden space that will remain for Mandalay after the
extensions have been completed, however, the remaining garden space would still measure
16x23 metres. This is considered to be sufficient.

Concerns were also raised that the proposed extensions would result in an increase in noise on
site once completed. The extensions do of course have the potential to allow for a larger family
to occupy the property in the future, however, it is not considered that this would increase noise
levels above and beyond what could reasonably be expected in a residential area. Noise is also
not something that can be controlled by planning and instead would be an issue for
environmental protection should statutory nuisance be caused.

The impact on trees important to the area

An aboricultural statement including a tree protection plan has been submitted with the
application. It is considered that the impact on protected trees is acceptable subject to condition

91



6.11

4. This condition requires a revised tree protection plan to be submitted which includes
protection measures for tree T2 at the front of the site. It is not considered that other nearby off
site trees would be impacted by the development. The proposal is considered acceptable without
the need for additional planting and as such a landscaping scheme is not considered necessary.

The impact on parking

The floor plans show 5 bedrooms; however, it would also possible for the games room and study
to provide bedrooms in the future. However, under the borough’s parking standards a 5 and 7
bedroom house would require the same number of parking spaces (3). These spaces can
comfortably be provided on the front driveway or within the garage. It is not considered
necessary for a traffic or constriction management plan to be submitted as the proposal is
unlikely to result in a significant increase in traffic movements and there is sufficient space on
site for builder’s vehicles and materials to be stored.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

6 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a statutory notice advertising the application at the site on

29.04.2016

4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the report this

Comment ) .
is considered

1. | Unacceptable loss of sunlight and daylight to our main living | Paragraph 6.5
areas (Ararat house).

2. | A greater sense of enclosure and loss of amenity (Ararat house). | Paragraph 6.5
3. | Noise and disturbance arising after completion. Paragraph 6.9
4. | Loss of sunlight to our front garden (Ararat House). Paragraph 6.5
5. | Impact on important trees. Paragraph 6.10
6. | Being overlooked/lack of privacy (17 the Burlings). Paragraph 6.6
7. | The extension above the garage will be intrusive to the front of | Paragraph 6.7

our property (Lansdowne House).

Other consultees and organisations

Where in the report this

Consultee Comment . .
is considered
Parish 1. The application is considered to be an 1. Paragraph’s 6.2 and
Council: overdevelopment of the site. 6.3
2. The development will lead to a loss of neighbour | 2. Paragraph’s 6.5 to
amenity. 6.9

3 .Concerns about the potential loss of trees and the | 3. Paragraph 6.10
loss of garden space.

4. No landscaping or traffic management plans have | 4. paragraph’s 6.10

been submitted. and 6.11

5. Concerns about the level of parking. 5. Paragraph 6.11
SPAE: (1) The proposed rear extension will have an adverse | 1. Paragraph’s 6.5 to

impact on neighbour amenity. 6.9

The proposed Velux windows will cause overlooking. | 2. Paragraph 6.6

92



The development will reduce the private garden

amenity space. 3.Paragraph 6.8
The development will have an adverse effect on the

street scene. 4. Paragraph’s 6.2 and

6.3

SPAE: (2) In light of the modifications made to the single storey | n/a
rear extension SPAE no longer considers that the
extension would cause a significant loss of amenity to
Ararat House. Concerns are still raised that the
extension will result in a significant reduction in the
private garden space of occupants, however, SPAE
does not consider this alone merits refusal of the
development.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

o Appendix A - Site location plan
e Appendix B — Existing and proposed plans

Documents associated with the application can be viewed at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp by entering the application number shown at the top of
this report without the suffix letters.

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall match those of the
existing building unless first otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall be carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DGL1.

Prior to the substantial completion of the development a water butt of at least 120L internal
capacity shall be installed to intercept rainwater draining from the roof of the building. It shall
subsequently be retained.

Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding and demand for water, increase the level of sustainability
of the development and to comply with Requirement 4 of the Royal Borough of Windsor &
Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning Document.

A revised tree protection plan shall be submitted to include protection for the tree, T2 (shown on
plan Q87/1046 TPP in the Arboricultural Report). As a minimum this shall be fencing in
accordance with British Standard 5837 to protect the soft ground within the root protection area
of T2 and any other measures, such as ground protection, to ensure the root protection area is
undamaged. No development shall take place until a revised plan is submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The erection of fencing for the protection of any
retained tree and any other protection specified shall be undertaken in accordance with the
approved plans and particulars before any equipment, machinery or materials are brought on to
the site, and thereafter maintained %I the completion of all construction work and all


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been permanently removed from the site.
Nothing shall be stored or placed in any area fenced in accordance with this condition and the
ground levels within those areas shall not be altered, nor shall any excavation be made, without
the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect trees which contribute to the visual amenities of the site and surrounding
area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1, N6.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

94



Appendix 1 - Site Location Plan

N
i© Crown copyright and database right 2016. Ordnance Survey 100018817 Scale @ A4 1:1,250 %

95



Appendix B — Existing and proposed plans

Sy 00 FLAY
UL R W S O |
- MG A R G AY
- L)

1509MAND1 o et om e
=

- - - A SR e M

- ~
R Ao
ﬁcepts IR o PROPOSED FLDOR PLANS =" Sismes =0
forasling aacacticnad moovanore ‘mm ETEE-

96



ety [ te = LI3L ]
— - MANDALAY, SURLEICH ROAD. . - -] &
homeconcepty — wema | e

97



98



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

29 June 2016 Item: 5
Application 16/01089/FULL

No.:

Location: Rajvoog Tandoori Restaurant 4 High Street Sunninghill Ascot SL5 9NE
Proposal: Single storey detached outbuilding to rear

Applicant: Mr Khan

Agent: Mr Graham Lake - BFM

If you have a question about this report, please contact: David Johnson on 01628 685692 or at
david.johnson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

1.3

1.4

SUMMARY

The current application is a re — submission of application 14/03051/FULL, refused by panel on
the 2" February 2015. The reasons for refusal were as follows:

1).The scale, bulk and location of the building and the relationship of the door and canopy
adjacent to residential properties, would result in an insensitively designed development
and in an intensification of the use of the site that would be contrary to the Ascot,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DGL1.1, 1.4 and 1.6., NP/DG2
and NP/DG3, The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999
(Incorporating Alterations Adopted 2003) Policy DG1, and advice in the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF).

2).The use of the building during evening and early morning business hours would be
detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring residents, contrary to Local Plan Policy E10,
the intentions of the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan Policy
NP/E1.2(a), and advice in the NPPF.

The current application proposes a building measuring 5m x 4.5m and setback from the boundary
by 2m at its closest increasing to 2.2m. The height of the proposed building would be between
2.15m and 2.3m and the door and main window have been moved from the side elevation facing
the theatre to the front of the building facing the rear of the restaurant. There will be a small toilet
window in the north elevation facing the theatre.

The existing shed was the subject of Enforcement Action in 2003 following the withdrawal of a
retrospective planning application for a change of use from a storage room to a private hire (taxi)
booking office. The Local Planning Authority served an Enforcement Notice (EN) requiring the
removal of the shed and attached antennas from the land. A subsequent appeal against the EN
was dismissed without any variation. A routine visit was carried out in 2006 to check compliance
with the notice, at which time it was noted that the unauthorised use of the shed had cease and
all antennas had been removed. The shed was being used as storage in connection with the
restaurant. It was therefore considered that although the Enforcement Notice required the
removal of the shed as the shed itself was not the main issue it was not considered expedient to
take further action.

It is considered that the moving of the proposed outbuilding and the re — locating of the door and
canopy to the elevation facing the restaurant away from the neighbouring residential properties
would overcome the first reason for refusal of the previous application and would be an
improvement to the existing outbuilding. Although the proposed building is wider than the existing
building, its scale would have no significant impact on the character and appearance of the
application site and the surrounding street scene.

It is not considered that the proposed outbuilding would have a significant detrimental impact on
the amenities of the neighbouring property and would not result in a significant loss of light to No.
1 Kings Road. It is not considered that the increase in the width of the proposed building or its
increased floor area would result in a significant increase in overlooking or loss of privacy over
and above what could normally be expected within mixed commercial and residential areas.

99




15

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

The proposed building would not have any impact on pedestrian or highway safety in the area,
nor would there be any impact on pa

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in
Section 9 of this report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Yong only if the officer recommendation is for approval, for the
reason that there is uncertainty as to the use as it is not part of the lease for the restaurant
and the building was used for a 24 hr taxi business in the past by the freeholder of the site.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application site is located on the east side of the High Street at the end of a row of retail
premises and next to the Novello Theatre. The neighbouring shops have residential
accommodation above and there are a number of dwellings to the rear of the site that face onto
Kings Road. The site also slopes away to the rear.

The application site consists of a ground floor restaurant with residential accommodation above.
Due to the slope of the site the rear of the property has a basement at ground level with an
external metal staircase providing access to the ground floor kitchen and to the floor above. A
passageway shared with the theatre provides as a pedestrian access from the street.

A small timber outbuilding is situated between the metal staircase, and the rear boundary of the
site. Sunninghill High Street is a classified numbered road (B3020) subject to a 20mph speed
limit.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

Ref. Description Decision and Date

Withdrawn 12/12/2003.
Enforcement Appeal
dismissed 30/03/2005

03/83608/COU | Change of use from storage room to private hire
(taxi) booking office.

05/01991/FULL | Siting of walk-in chiller located upon raised | Refused 05/10/2005
platform to rear (retrospective).
06/00432/FULL | Siting of walk-in chiller located upon raised | Refused 30/03/2006.
platform to rear (retrospective). Appeal dismissed
13/12/2006
07/00297/FULL | Re-siting of walk-in chiller at first floor level. Refused 29/03/2007
14/03051/FULL | Erection of a detached outbuilding to rear. Refused 12/02/2015

The applicant seeks full planning permission for the erection of a single storey detached
outbuilding to the rear for use as a proposed staff rest room. The existing wooden storage shed
would be removed as part of this application. It is shown that the outbuilding would comprise of a
staff rest room and toilet.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways/ Impact on
settlement Parking residential
area issues amenity
Local Plan DG1 E10, NAP3
T5
Ascot, Sunninghill NP/DG1, NP/T1

100



5.2

5.3

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

iv.

and Sunningdale NP/DG3,
Neighbourhood NP/EL,
Plan

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

e Sustainable Design and Construction
e Planning for an Ageing Population

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

) RBWM Townscape Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

Previous planning history relating to the site and its relevance to the current application;
Impact on the character and appearance of the original building and street scene;
Impact on the amenities of neighbouring properties; and

Impact on pedestrian and highway safety.

Previous planning history relating to the site and its relevance to the current application.

Planning permission was refused in 2003 for the change of use of the wooden shed to the rear of
the site from a storage room to a private hire (taxi) booking office. The application was
retrospective and so an Enforcement Notice dated 19" October 2004 was served on all parties
involved in the unauthorised use. The affective date of the Enforcement Notice was the 26"
November 2004, with the time for compliance being three months from when the notice took
affect, unless an appeal was made before the 26™ November 2004. The notice required the
removal of the shed and antennas from the land and the removal of all materials arising from
compliance with the removal of the shed and antennas.

An appeal was lodged against the issuing of the Enforcement Notice. The appeal was solely on
ground (g), which is that the time given to comply is too short. The notice gave three months
from the effective date of the 26™ November 2004. The notice therefore gave enough time for the
appellant to find the alternative premises without the need to appeal. The appeal was dismissed
on the 30™ March 2005 with the notice being upheld without variation.

Following a routine visit on the 13™ July 2006 to check compliance with the enforcement notice, it
was clear that the taxi business was no longer operating from the wooden shed and that all
antennas had been removed. The shed was still in situ but was clearly being used as storage in
connection with the restaurant. Whilst, technically the Enforcement Notice required the removal
of the shed, it was considered that the shed by itself was not an issue in planning terms. The
main issue was the use of the shed for the operation of a taxi business. As such it was not
considered expedient to pursue the removal of the shed further.

101


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Planning application ref. 14/03051/FULL, for the erection of a detached outbuilding to the rear
was refused following consideration by the Windsor Rural Panel on thel2th February 2015, for
the following reasons:

1 The scale, bulk and location of the building and the relationship of the door and canopy
adjacent to residential properties, would result in an insensitively designed development and
in an intensification of the use of the site that would be contrary to the Ascot, Sunninghill and
Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan Policies NP/DG1.1, 1.4 and 1.6., NP/DG2 and NP/DGS3,
The Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (Incorporating Alterations
Adopted 2003) Policy DG1, and advice in the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).

2 The use of the building during evening and early morning business hours would be
detrimental to the amenities of neighbouring residents, contrary to Local Plan Policy E10, the
intentions of the Ascot, Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan Policy NP/E1.2(a),
and advice in the NPPF.

The current application is to demolish the now dilapidated wooden shed and replace it with a
larger building with a render finish to be used as a rest room for restaurant staff. The application
has been amended to overcome the first reason for refusal of the previous application. The
proposed building will be setback from the boundary by 2m at its closest increasing to 2.2m.

Impact on the character and appearance of the original building and street scene.

The proposal is to demolish the existing wooden storage shed with a floor area of approximately
12.25 square metres and a total height of 2.5m and erect a building with a sloping roof and floor
area of approximately 25 square metres. The proposed new building would be located between
2m and 2.2m away from the rear boundary of the site, as opposed to the existing building on the
site which is 1.8m from the boundary. The proposed outbuilding would have a painted render
finish with a built up felt roof. The height of the proposed building would be 2.3m at its highest
reducing to 2.15m at its closest point to the neighbouring property (1 Kings Road). It is
considered that the outbuilding would not be readily visible from the High Street due to its
location to the rear of the site. It is noted that concerns have been raised relating to the siting of
the outbuilding on elevated land and the height and style of the outbuilding. However, given the
reduction in height and the materials to be used in its construction it is considered that the
outbuilding would be an improvement to the existing outbuilding and although the proposed
building is wider than the existing building, its scale would have no significant impact on the
character and appearance of the application site and the surrounding street scene.

Impact on neighbouring properties.

The proposed outbuilding would be located to the rear of the site and would replace an existing
storage shed, and would be for the sole use of employees of the restaurant as a restroom. Whilst
it is considered that the proposed outbuilding will be visible from the neighbouring properties, it is
noted that the proposal is replacing an existing outbuilding. As such it is considered that the
proposed outbuilding would not have a significant impact upon the residential amenities of
neighbouring properties. Furthermore, with the outbuilding used as a restroom for staff of the
restaurant, it is not considered that there would be a significant increase in noise over and above
that which currently exists when staff are sat on the metal staircase or elsewhere in the rear yard
of the restaurant to warrant refusal of the application. Concerns were raised that the building
could be used as additional accommodation for staff or for a separate commercial use, however
it is stated in the description that the application relates to the erection of a single storey
detached building for use as a staff restroom and as such planning permission relates only to the
use of the outbuilding as a restroom which is considered to be a use ancillary to the main A3 use
of the site.

The site is an existing mixed use of residential at first floor and a restaurant at ground floor level,
and is located within the commercial main street of Sunninghill. With regards to the impact of the
proposed outbuilding on the residential property to the rear (No. 1 Kings Road), it is not
considered that the proposed outbuilding located a minimum of 2m from the boundary would
have a significant detrimental impact on the amenities of the neighbouring property and would not
result in a significant loss of light to No. 1 Kings Road. It is not considered that the increase in the
width of the proposed building or its increased floor area would result in a significant increase in

102



6.10

6.11

overlooking or loss of privacy over and above what could normally be expected within mixed
commercial and residential areas. The door and main window have been relocated to the front
elevation facing the rear of the restaurant and is therefore considered to reduce further the
impact on neighbouring properties. The existing building is in a poor visual state demolition of this
building and its replacement with a more visually attractive structure is considered to enhance the
amenities of the neighbouring properties as a result of the proposal.

Concerns have been raised about the appearance of the existing building and that the proposed
building would be sited within an area overgrown with Japanese knotweed. As previously stated
the replacement of the existing building with a new building would be a visual improvement.
Furthermore a condition is recommended (condition 3) requiring the applicant to carry out de-
contamination works to remove all Japanese Knotweed from the site.

Impact on pedestrian and highway safety.

The proposed building would not due to its location within the site have any detrimental impact on
pedestrian or highways safety. The proposed building would not have any implications for parking
in the area.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT

Comments from interested parties

Five occupiers were notified directly of the application.

The planning officer posted a statutory notice advertising the application at the site on 18" April

2016.

Three letters have been received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered

1. | The building is to be sited on an area contaminated with Japanese | See para. 6.10
Knotweed. This was not admitted to by the applicant in part 14 of the
land contamination in his application. | am given to understand that this
particular species of plant has to be professionally treated with
chemicals and then officially certified clear when it has been eradicated

3).

2. | We are also extremely dubious as to the usage of the proposed | See para. 6.2 —
outbuilding. The applicant specifically told us that the purpose of the | 6.8

existing building was solely for storage. Upon completion this building
was immediately used for an unregistered taxi business, which was later
closed down by the council some years ago (3).

3. | We know the staff use their living quarters above the restaurant as a | See para. 6.7
rest area and therefore, seriously question the need for any further rest
area. Since the applicant was less than honest in relation to the first
construction, we are sceptical as to what he is applying for. We urge you
to look very closely at his proposal since there will be enough room in
the proposed building to house two or three beds. None of us wish to
endure another arduous and protracted struggle to protect our peace
and quality of life.

4. | The proximity of the site is very close to the boundary of our property | See para. 6.7 —
and is situated within a few feet of two of our bedrooms. These are | 6.8

occupied by our adult son and daughter. The proposed building is
considerably larger than the existing structure and is also within a matter
of feet from our kitchen and patio area. Whether there is to be several
men resting or sleeping in the building we feel that it would be wholly
unsanitary. Even if the proposed building is to be a rest room we would

103



still be anxious regarding the impact of increased noise generated from
the staff as the restaurant is open until late at night and the staff
sometimes do not leave the kitchen until the early hours of the morning.

The difference in height of the land at the back of 1 Kings Road and 4
High Street is over 0.5m making it higher on the site of the proposed
building than 1 Kings Road. This will have to be taken into
consideration, bearing in mind the close proximity of the bedrooms and
the fact that our patio area is adjacent to the building. There will still be
a detrimental effect to us and contravenes point 2 of the core planning
principles, as we believe that it in no way enhances the environment.(2)

See para. 6.9

| wanted to write to you to inform you that Rajvoog Tandoori Restaurant,
4 High Street Sunninghill Ascot SL5 9NE have already illegally
intercepted our drain on our property (it runs across the front garden at
3, Kings Road, Sunninghill, Ascot). The planning application looks the
Rajvoog Tandoori Restaurant will again intercept our drain for their so
called “Rest Room”. We are told by other neighbours that the new
proprietor of the restaurant will not use or indeed ask for any rest room
and it forms no part of his lease with the applicant.(2)

This is not a
planning matter.

Other consultees and organisations

Consultee Comment

Where in the
report this is
considered

Sunninghill and Ascot Objections as the committee considered the
Parish Council: application to be an overdevelopment of the site

which could lead to a loss of neighbour amenity,
contrary to Neighbourhood Plan policies NP/DG2,
NP/DG3 and Local Plan Policy DG1. The
committee requested that the following conditions
should be imposed, if the Borough were minded
to approve the application:

That the outbuilding should not be used for
habitable accommodation and should only be
used by restaurant staff

That the hours of usage be specified and limited

That the height of the outbuilding must not be
higher than that shown in the drawings submitted
with the application

That permitted development rights are removed

See para. 6.7

Highways Officer

No objections subject to informatives.

Noted.

ASCOT, Sunninghill &
Sunningdale
Neighbourhood Plan
Delivery Group:

We note that amended plans have been
submitted for this application. While these
distance the proposed new building marginally
from the rear fence and hence the neighbouring
property, we do not believe that this addresses all
our concerns and the A, S and S Neighbourhood
Plan Delivery Group continues to object to this
application:

1. The proposal still represents an over-
intensification of use of the site and will have a
harmful impact on neighbour amenity, especially
at the rear of the site, against policy NP/DG2.2

2. This is particularly acute as the proposed use

as a rest room for restaurant staff means that the

building will have_a, high level of use during the
104

See para. 6.7




evening hours — based on the applicant’s
application form this will be in use up until
midnight.

3. Furthermore, despite the revised plans, this is
a cramped and contrived development in a
restricted space, which fails to comply with
NP/DG3. We urge you to refuse this application.

Should you nonetheless be minded to approve
this application, we request that conditions are
imposed as follows:

a. That the hours of use are limited and
EXCLUDE the evening hours — in order to protect
neighbour amenity.

b. That its use is linked and limited to its
proposed use as a staff rest room for the Rajvoog

Restaurant staff and any permitted development
rights for its conversion to alternative business or
habitable use are removed.

c. That no increase in height, footprint or scale be
permitted without a new planning application
being made.

SPAE: The proposal still represents an over- | See para. 6.7
intensification of use of the site and will have a
harmful impact on neighbour amenity, especially
at the rear of the site, against policy NP/DG2.2

The design is for a facility that could potentially
be habitable or usable for other business | S€€ para. 6.2to
purposes. If the application is approved, we 6.8.

request that conditions be imposed that the
structure is to be used for the business of the
Rajvoog and its staff and not be permitted to
become a separate dwelling or premises for a
separate business.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

The materials to be used on the external surfaces of the development shall be in accordance
with those specified in the application unless any different materials are first agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. Relevant Policies - Local Plan DG1.

105



1.

Before any works are undertaken, the site must be surveyed by an approved environmental
consultant for the presence of Japanese Knotweed and a copy of this survey sent to the Local
Planning Authority. If Japanese Knotweed is confirmed, full details of a scheme for its eradication
and/or control shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of work on site, and the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the
commencement of building works. A validation report confirming the remediation treatment
carried out and that the site is free of Knotweed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To eradicate Japanese Knotweed from the development site, to prevent the spread of
the plant through development works and to accord with policies DG1 and N6 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan and the aims of policy NP/EN4 of the Ascot,
Sunninghill and Sunningdale Neighbourhood Plan 2014.

Informatives

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act 1986, Part Il, Clause 9, which
enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to the footway or grass
verge arising during building operations.

The attention of the applicant is drawn to Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980 which enables
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

No builders materials, plant or vehicles related to the implementation of the development should
be parked/stored on the public highway so as to cause an obstruction at any time.

106



Appendix A — Site plan.

107



Appendix B — Plans and Elevations.

BUILLUFFRLT M ad

zmﬂ north | east s

BBV b DI I0VEE T bl
o Med ol UMRD aupee

M.Khan
dob g
A Voot LErhy LT .
ARGH STEE
NTIOF U0 e ) R NI HILL
hocst
bananc) 4L aNe
S . T hL. Dlbwmice TrTL8
B e = |—* | ! || PLovosev sTark
__ _| I . _ Pl anms . REST Room
| L SRR | o PLAMS
hatme, “ A . A ELEVATIONS
LathhT. F—+ | 4TARE e
s | e gom | PLANMINE PLAMAIAG.
banlgy { |
| | | L
g
4 )
B e P 2o0g®
F— ¥ -k

108



WINDSOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

29 June 2016 ltem: 6

Application 16/01120/FULL

No.:

Location: Watersmeet House 18 Kingswood Creek Wraysbury Staines TW19 5EN

Proposal: Single storey rear extension, replacement roof with habitable accommodation, 1 x front
and 1 x rear dormers with amendments to fenestration. (Retrospective)

Applicant: Mr Hothi

Agent: Mr Raj Bancil - The Bancil Partnership

Parish/Ward:  Wraysbury Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Haydon Richardson on 01628 796046 or at
haydon.richardson@rbwm.gov.uk

1.

11

1.2

SUMMARY

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for a single storey rear extension,
replacement roof providing habitable accommodation, 1x front and 1x rear dormer with
fenestration alterations.

On balance it is considered that the retrospective development is acceptable.

It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission with the conditions listed in Section
11 of this report.

2.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

o At the request of Councillor Lenton; for the reason that the application replaces another with
concerned nearby residents.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS

The application relates to a part single, part two storey chalet situated on the east side of
Kingswood Creek. The exterior of the property is grey render and the windows are upvc.

The property forms part of a tranquil, rural, residential settlement sited upon the banks of the
river. The majority of dwellings have small to medium sized plots with onsite parking; their
external finishes vary between brick and render and there is no uniformity in their colour. Ground
and first floor extensions are not uncommon in the area, nor are dormers sited in the front and
rear roof slopes of properties.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The application seeks retrospective planning permission for a single storey rear extension,
replacement roof providing habitable accommodation, 1x front and 1x rear dormer with
fenestration alterations.

Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 1, Class B of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 allows for the enlargement of a dwellinghouse which would consist of
an addition or alteration to its roof. The retrospective roof alterations were made under the
assumption that the works would be in compliance with Class B and thus constitute permitted
development. However the roof alterations fail to comply with paragraph B.1.C as the front
elevation dormer extends beyond the plane of an existing roof slope which forms the principal
elevation of the dwellinghouse and fronts a highway.

Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 allows for the enlargement, improvement or other alteration of a
dwellinghouse. The retrospective rear enlargement was made under the assumption that the
works would be in compliance with Class A and thus constitute permitted development. However
the single storey rear extension fails to f(())néply with paragraph A.1.J(iii) as it extends beyond a




wall forming a side elevation of the original dwellinghouse, and would have a width greater than
half the width of the original dwellinghouse.

Relevant Planning History

Application Description Decision and Date
number
13/90307/PREA | Replacement Dwelling. Advice was given
PP against the proposed
development due to
conflict with Green Belt
policies contained within
the Local Plan
(07.08.2013).
13/02694 Construction of a new dwelling following | Withdrawn (22.10.2013).
demolition of existing.
13/90307/PREA | Demolition of existing Dwelling House and the | Advice was given
PP erection of a replacement dwelling house (follow | against the proposed
up of previous pre app). development due to
conflict with Green Belt
policies contained within
the Local Plan
(06.12.2013).
14/00388/FULL | Construction of a new dwelling following | Refused due to conflict
demolition of existing. with Green belt, flooding
and design policies
(30.05.2014).
14/90291/PREA | Demolition of existing Dwelling House and the | Advice was given
PP erection (follow up of previous pre app) of a | againstthe proposed
replacement dwelling house (follow up of previous | development due to
pre app). conflict with Green Belt,
design and flooding
policies contained within
the Local Plan
(15.07.2014).
15/00484/FULL | Replacement dwelling, following demolition of | Approved
existing dwelling . Planning permission was
granted for a dwelling
that would be 79% larger
in floor space and 35%
larger in volume than the
original dwelling.
(11.05.15).
15/02828/CPD | Certificate of lawfulness to determine whether the | Withdrawn (22.10.2013).
3 single storey rear extensions, construction of
porch are Lawful.
15/04052 Raising and alteration/extension of the roof to | Refused due to conflict

accommodate one rear dormer, two front dormers
and front porch.

with Green belt and
design policies
(26.02.2016).

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

Royal Borough Local Plan

110




6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Provision
settlement Green | Highrisk of | Setting of the of
area Belt flooding Thames parking
v v v v v
Local Plan DG1, H14 GB1, F1 N2 P4
GB2,
GB4

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

o Interpretation of Policy F1 — Areas liable to flooding

More information on this document can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

o RBWM Landscape Character Assessment — view using link at paragraph 6.2
o RBWM Parking Strategy — view using link at paragraph 6.2

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:

I Impact on the Green Belt

i Impact on the Setting of the Thames

iil. Impact on flooding

iv. Impact on the character and appearance of the host property and street scene
V. Impact on neighbouring amenity
Vi. impact on parking

Impact on the Green Belt

Local Plan Policy GB4 identifies that within the Green Belt, residential extensions that do not
result in a disproportionate addition over and above the size of the original dwelling, are
considered to be appropriate development in the context of Policy GB1. Proposals that are
disproportionate are inappropriate development which is by definition harmful to the Green Belt.
Within the subtext of the Policy GB4 it is stated that the floor space will be a guiding factor in
assessing whether a proposal is in accordance with the policy. However, percentage increases
are not the sole determining factor. The bulk and scale of the proposals, their effect on the
openness and the purpose of the Green Belt and their impact on the general appearance of the
area as well as the individual property will all be considered in assessing a proposal.

This is consistent with the NPPF position on Green Belt Development. Section 9, paragraph 89 of
the NPPF states that the construction of new buildings is inappropriate within the Green Belt with
a few exceptions; the exceptions include the extension or alteration of a building provided that it
does not result in disproportionate additions over and above the size of the original dwelling.

111


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

The original property has a combined floor space of approximately 178m?. The property was
recently granted planning permission (15/00484) for a replacement dwelling that would have a
combined floor space of approximately 322m?; which represents a 79% increase in floor space
when compared with the original dwelling. The dwelling to which this retrospective application
relates has a total floor space of 253m? (courtesy of ground floor extensions and roof alterations):
representing a 42% increase in floor space when compared with the original dwelling. The
existing property is also smaller in bulk, scale and height when compared with the replacement
dwelling approved under planning application 15/00484.

It is therefore considered that it would be unreasonable to refuse the application on Green Belt
grounds as a larger development has been approved at the site; a development that is still a
viable fall back position for the applicant.

Impact on the Setting of the Thames

Local Plan Policy N2 suggests that development will not be permitted where it would ‘adversely
affect the character and setting of the river in both urban and rural locations’ and that proposals
should seek to ‘conserve or enhance’ such areas. The policy also states that new developments
should protect views of and from the river, and that the character, height; scale and bulk of
developments should respect those adjoining.

The dwelling to which this retrospective application relates is considered to be of an unfavourable
design; its unbalanced roof form is considered to be an unsympathetic addition to the original
dwelling. However it should be noted that properties within the area vary in their design, colour,
material finishes and roof form. Mansard, gambrel and chalet style roofs containing gable ended
or boxed dormers are visible from the river; it could therefore be considered that the dwelling
would be in keeping with the appearance of the area and would preserve its character.

Properties within Kingswood Creek vary in their design but are generally uniform in their height;
No.18 Kingswood Creek would be in keeping with the roofline of the neighbouring properties.
Additionally as it stands the dwelling is considerably smaller in bulk and height when compared
with the replacement dwelling approved under application no.15/00484. The replacement
dwelling would have of approximately 6.85m, whereas the retrospective dwelling has a height of
6.15m.

Taking into consideration that a materially larger development is still a viable fall back position for
the applicant and that other properties in the area vary in their design and character; it is
considered that on balance it would be difficult to substantiate a reason for refusal reason which
relates to impact of the development on the setting of the Thames. The proposal is therefore
considered to be acceptable and would comply with policy Local Plan Policy N2.

Impact on susceptibility to flooding

Local Plan Policy F1 of the Adopted Local Plan is applied to all development within areas liable to
flooding. The policy indicates that new residential development or non-residential development,
including extensions in excess of 30m2 will not be permitted “unless it can be demonstrated to
the satisfaction of the Borough Council that the proposal would not of itself, or cumulatively in
conjunction with other development: 1) impede the flow of flood water; or 2) reduce the capacity
of the floodplain to store flood water; or 3) increase the number of people or properties at risk
from flooding”.

The Policy states that ‘for a household, the gross cumulative area (GCA) would include the
additions to the property that have been completed since 26th September 1978 (as per
paragraph 2.4.7 of the Adopted Local Plan) which required express planning permission including
any detached garage(s) together with any outbuildings that are non-floodable’.

The retrospective works include a single storey rear extension which would provide a 57.6m?

increase in ground covered area and a 2.7m? porch; providing a cumulative GCA increase of
approximately 60m2; failing to comply with Local Plan Policy F1.

112



7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

However it should be noted that an extension of similar size and design could be constructed
under Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015; providing that a partition was made between the part of the
rear extension which would extend beyond the living room and the part of the rear extension that
extends beyond the kitchen. The division of the extension would ensure that the enlarged part of
the dwellinghouse would not extend beyond a wall forming a side elevation of the original
dwellinghouse and that the development fell within the remits of permitted development.

Local Plan Policy F1 explicitly states that only additions that have been granted full planning
permission will be taken into account in the assessment of GCA; as such extensions granted
under permitted development would not be included in the assessment.

Taking into consideration that minor material works are needed for the rear extensions to fall
within the remits of permitted development (a viable fall back position for the applicant) , the
retrospective single storey rear extension has not been included in the GCA assessment required
under Local Plan Policy F1. The proposal would therefore have a GCA of 2.7m? complying with
Local Plan Policy F1.

Impact on the character and appearance of the host property and street scene

The appearance of a development is a material planning consideration and the National Planning
Policy Framework, Section 7 (Requiring Good Design) and Local Plan Policy DG1, advises that
all development should seek to achieve a high quality of design that improves the character and
quality of an area. Local Plan Policy H14 advises that extensions should not have an adverse
effect upon the character or appearance of the original property or any neighbouring properties,
nor adversely affect the street scene in general.

Properties within Kingswood Creek are unique in their design; their various roof forms, colours,
material finishes and designs compliment a tranquil, rural, residential settlement upon the banks
of the river.

The dwelling to which the current application relates would have multiple roof pitches similar to
other properties in the area and would include a single front dormer, which sits well within the
existing roof space; above the eaves and comfortably below the properties ridgeline. Not only do
other properties within the area have large gable ended and or box dormers in their front and rear
elevations but they are also of unique colour and design; it is therefore considered that the
retrospective works sought under this application would on balance result in a dwelling that would
be in keeping with the character of the area and would be of no harm the street scene.

It should be noted that under Article 3 and Schedule 2, Part 1, Class B of the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015, the retrospective roof alterations would
fall within the remits of permitted development; if the front dormer was removed. This fall back
position is still a viable option for the applicant.

Impact on neighbouring amenity

The single storey rear extension does not extend beyond a line drawn at 60 degrees from the
centre point of the nearest habitable room opening of either neighbouring property; in
compliance with the advice given in Appendix 12 (Guidance Note 1, House Extensions) of the
Local Plan with regard to light guidelines. The front and rear dormers would provide similar views
to those of the original dwelling. It is considered that due to the nature of the works and their
siting there would be no significant harm caused to the immediate neighbouring properties in
terms of loss of privacy, outlook, daylight, and sunlight or otherwise.

Impact on Parking

7.21

No.18 Kingswood Creek benefits from 4 bedrooms. Drawing ‘RA/PP/2632 - 00-01’ indicates that
the property would provide 3 on site parking spaces. It is considered that sufficient space would
remain on the site to accommodate the car parking for the resulting dwelling in compliance with

113



8.1

the adopted parking standards in Appendix 7 of the Local Plan as amended by the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Parking Strategy, May 2004.

Other Material Considerations

The property is located within the Wraysbury Article 4 zone; however the article 4 is not relevant
to this planning application.

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties
The planning officer posted a notice advertising the application at the site on 22/04/16.

3 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

Where in the
Comment

report this is
considered

19 Kingswood Creek —

The development is out of keeping with other properties in the area.

The reasons for the refusal of application no.15/04052 apply to this
application.

The roof structure is out of keeping with other properties in the area.
The rear roof structure is not a dormer; the various pitches of the roof
form an incongruous addition to the household and area.

The ground floor extensions constructed under permitted development
conflict with the green belt measurements approved in application
no.15/00584.

The proposed development would have an adverse impact on the
greenbelt and flooding.

One parking space would be lost as a result of a suspected garage
conversion.

All comments
received during
the process of
the application
have been
taken into
consideration.
See section 7.

20 Kingswood Creek-
The development is out of keeping with other properties in the area.

The reasons for the refusal of application no.15/04052 apply to this
application.

The roof structure is out of keeping with other properties in the area.
The rear roof structure is not a dormer and the various pitches of the
roof form an incongruous addition to the household and area.

All comments
received during
the process of
the application
have been
taken into
consideration.
See section 7.

No.8 Kingswood Creek -

The area is unique in its design and location. Properties within the
riverside settlement vary in design but have similar characteristics such
as pitched dormers. The proposal would be out of keeping with this
character; the boxlike dormers would harm the property and appearance
of the area. If granted the development would set a poor precedent for
the future development of the area.

All comments
received during
the process of
the application
have been
taken into
consideration.
See section 7.

Statutory consultees

Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is

considered
Wraysbury Strongly object to this retrospective development. All comments

114




10.

11.

Parish The proposal appears to be overdevelopment of the site in | received during

Council an area liable to flooding. A similar development has already | the process of
been refused. the application

have been

taken into

consideration.
See section 7.

APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A — Site location plan

e Appendix B — Existing ground floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 01

o Appendix C — Existing first floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 02

o Appendix D — Existing elevations, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 03

o Appendix E — Pre existing elevations, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 04

o Appendix F — Pre existing ground floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 08
e Appendix G — Pre existing first floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 09

Documents associated with the application can be viewed at
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp by entering the application number shown at the top of
this report without the suffix letters.

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have been successfully/unsuccessfully resolved.
CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

Irrespective of the provisions of Classes A, B and E of part 1 of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) no enlargement, improvement or any other
alteration (including the erection of any ancillary building within the curtilage) of or to any
dwelling house the subject of this permission shall be carried out without planning permission
having first been obtained from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: The site requires strict control over the form of any additional development which may
be proposed. Relevant Policies - Local Plan H11, DG1.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

115


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/pam/search.jsp

Appendix A — Site Plan

|‘ ‘
l\ 2 ~ / /
FP-i'"

@ Crown copyright and database right 2016, Ordnance Survey 100018817

116

i
S [
f f
f
/
/
Path |
[ 1
“.'/—
7‘: n- *
7 —
[/ ———
!/ ——
f ~—
/
"‘ ,"
/
/

King John's
Hunting Lodge

Scale @ A4 1:1,250

Pt



Appendix B — Existing ground floor plan, Drawing No

.RA/PP/2632 -01

p

EROW

[~

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR FLAN
SCALE 1100

o 1 S 0 Vet

AT e Com damaes E— i O b - Neowe —
. P POy [Ty S Py————— SN s =

e emphephastommimtson | WIS T Do sainn

E—:::E—-—-::":.- Clamegte oSS0

T St e AT SR T |2 12 [

Appendix C — Existing first floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 — 02
BEDROOM EEDROOM
:’f ‘i’:"
HALL
SHOWER
EXISTING FIRST FLOOR FLAN
- 150
2 T =
TT30 T vy Sucto Wi 587 U+ Tw B N8 T 3 4 00 o I" i""“"l" —




Appendix D — Existing elevations, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 — 03

EXISTING SOE ELEVATION

EXISTING ANOTHER SHOE
ELEVATION

— — -
S —~ —
P e ~ oS
I| |
EXISTING FRONT ELEVATION EXISTING REAR ELEVATION
1100 i —
—— 5 10 Metm
PR e Lo e oot - iy . e
- —— Nae | S— S
S e A P | b -l <= Oty
%m-—.-—-- TR TN TATE N - sezry
g A e 1 Dewgin  MSPIn B
T b D S TR Vo T W Vo S W T O ] LI

Appendix E — Pre existing elevations, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 — 04

FRE EX3STING REAR ELEVATION PRE EXISTING ANOTHER SIDE ELEVATION
/ A D
1..-_—.2, T \
|D| ||
PRE EXSTING FRONT ELEVATION PRE EXSTING SIDE ELEVATION
1100 e —
) 5 10 Matwy
. PR e Loveer e oot e - . L=
1 0p 79 Agr— Gt SR [ SS— Oty W o =
; ————— o TATEIEN TATE N - sezry
et e | B
T e e e BT Vo S W Vo O W B L S T

118




Appendix F — Pre existing ground floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 — 08

N |

] 1

LIVING ROTM

[

ap

=

L —

i

HALL
BEDROCOM BEDROOCM L
_...I KITCHEN GARAGE
S
BATH \" -
I { { I { = [ ]  —
PRE EXISTING GROUND FLOCR
PLAM
1:50 SCALE 1:50
1 2 5 10 Meder
- = e e e
Appendix G — Pre existing first floor plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 — 09
v
_l:
PRE EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN
SCALE 1:50
50
o 1 2 5 10 Meter
e Scate |--,: |-p«:... |L: fane e

119




Appendix H — Car Parking plan, Drawing No. RA/PP/2632 - 00-01

\
\.
17
- |

b \
7\~3“ s — gj_‘_; \
7& ____ KNGSWOOD CREEX

BLOCK PLAN SCALE 1:200
= pp— = ~ E— —
A= Forguascd Crast. 18 Krgmweos Cress, Rk P - s
e [veishapety Wraymary
AP s ety fn v B0 i 8 St B0 SN TWIDSEN s 20
P gty ted
o e . e ety bt e B e
27325 The Becacwuy, Dodtel, Miod 20 B4 4548 P (120 M74 4826 Scnle | X ]m—aa

120



Planning Appeals Received

20 May 2016 - 15 June 2016

WINDSOR RURAL

Agenda |

tem b

The Royal Borough
bz

IR

Windsor &

Maidenhead

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Further information on planning appeals can be found at https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ Should you wish
to make comments in connection with an appeal, please use the Plns reference number and write to the relevant
address, shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square,

Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teamel@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

6PN or email teampl3@pins.gsi.qgov.uk

Old Windsor Parish

16/60055/REF Planning Ref.:  15/02474/FULL PIns Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/
3147112

26 May 2016 Comments Due: 30 June 2016

Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation

Two storey extension to south elevation and part two storey, part first floor extension to East
elevation and new garage replacing conservatory. Construction of four dwelling terrace with
associated bin store and alterations to driveway following demolition of existing stable block
and garage

Moram House Datchet Road Old Windsor Windsor SL4 2RQ

Mr G Assaiante c/o Agent: Mr Mark Carter Carter Planning Limited 85 Alma Road Windsor
Berkshire SL4 3EX

Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

16/60058/REF Planning Ref.:  15/01500/VAR PIns Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/
3147515

2 June 2016 Comments Due: 7 July 2016

Refusal Appeal Type: Hearing

Erection of 8 apartments with basement parking, alterations to access, entrance gates and
landscaping following demolition of existing dwellings as approved under planning
permission 13/00731/FULL without complying with condition 15 so that the condition is
removed.

Woodlands Lodge And Boxwood House Heathfield Avenue Ascot

Mr Richard Barter c/o Agent: Mr D Bond Woolf Bond Planning The Mitfords Basingstoke
Road Three Mile Cross Reading RG7 1AT

Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

16/60059/REF Planning Ref.:  15/01501/VAR PIns Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/
3147514

2 June 2016 Comments Due: 7 July 2016

Refusal Appeal Type: Hearing

Erection of 10 apartments plus basement parking, access and landscaping following
demolition of existing dwellings as approved under planning permission 12/02854/FULL
without complying with condition 16 so that the condition is removed.

Woodlands Lodge And Boxwood House Heathfield Avenue Ascot

Mr Richard Barter- Millgate c/o Agent: Mr Douglas Bond Woolf Bond Planning The Mitfords
Basingstoke Road Three Mile Cross Reading RG7 1AT

121


https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Sunninghill And Ascot Parish

16/60061/PRPA Planning Ref.:  16/00182/TPO Pins Ref.:  APP/TPO/T0355/
5239

6 June 2016 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Part Refusal/Part Approval Appeal Type: Fast-track

(T1) Oak, crown reduction to final height of 14m and radial branch spread of 6m.

3 Stonehill Gate Hancocks Mount Ascot SL5 9WA

Judith Macfarlane c/o Agent: Mr Ben Abbatt Sapling Arboriculture Ltd 94 Mount Pleasant

Road Alton Hants GU34 2RS

122



Appeal Decision Report

20 May 2016 - 15 June 2016

WINDSOR RURAL

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

The Royal Borough

Windsor &
Maidenhead

15/00084/REF 14/03771/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/15/

3127972

Bewley Homes And Joint LPA Receivers of Savills UK Ltd c/o Agent: Mr Mark Carter Carter
Planning Limited 85 Alma Road Windsor Berkshire SL4 3EX

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse

Construction of 6x 4 bed dwellings, with associated access, parking, landscaping and
infrastructure, following demolition of existing dwelling.

2 Sunning Avenue Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9PN
Dismissed

Planning Ref.:

Decision Date: 14 June 2016

The proposal would tend to increase the urbanised feel of the area, as opposed to its current
more suburban character. The NPPF sets out the importance of the overall scale, density,
massing, height and layout of new development in relation to neighbouring buildings and the
local area more generally. As a consequence, the proposal would harm the character and
appearance of the area and conflict with the development plan and national policies. There
could be significant pressure from future occupiers of the houses to lop or fell some of the
protected trees at the site, which the Council could find it very difficult to resist, despite the
existence of a TPO for the site. Any consequent removal of or damage to the protected
trees would have a serious impact on the character of the area. On balance, the key benefit
of the development is the provision of housing. While this is to be welcomed in an area with a
housing shortfall, this does not justify the objection on environmental grounds.
Notwithstanding the social and economic benefits that would derive from the proposal, the
harm to the character and appearance of the area is such that the proposal was not
considered to represent sustainable development.

Appeal Ref.:

Appellant:
Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/00024/REF 15/02902/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/D/16/

3144977

Planning Ref.:

Mr John McGowan 10 St James Gate Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9SS
Delegated

Single storey rear extension
10 St James Gate Sunningdale Ascot SL5 9SS
Allowed

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Decision Date: 7 June 2016

The Inspector concluded that the proposal would not cause unacceptable harm to the
protected tree and that it would not subsequently be detrimental to the character and
appearance of the area through the loss of a protected feature.

123



Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/00025/REF 15/04024/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/D/16/

3144532

Mr David Hammond c/o Agent: Mr Mark Carter Carter Planning Limited 85 Alma Road
Windsor Berkshire SL4 3EX

Delegated

Part two, part single storey rear extension, following demolition of existing single storey
elements

41 Beech Hill Road Ascot SL5 0BJ
Dismissed

Planning Ref.:

Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Decision Date: 13 June 2016

The Inspector considered that the cumulative proposed use of timber cladding, the
unsympathetic replacement of sash and other windows with featureless glazing and the flat
roofed nature of the proposal would result in a development which does not integrate with
the host dwelling and detracts from the prevalent Victorian character and appearance of the
host dwelling and this part of Beech Hill Road.

Appeal Ref.:
Appellant:

Decision Type:
Description:
Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

16/00031/REF 15/03943/FULL Pins Ref.:  APP/T0355/W/16/

3144809

Mr And Mrs H Uppal c/o Agent: Mr Alex Frame ADS Property Services Taradale Little Lane
Upper Buckleberry Reading RG7 6QX

Planning Ref.:

Delegated Officer Recommendation:  Refuse
Erection of 1 x dwelling.

34 Wharf Road Wraysbury Staines TW19 5JQ

Allowed Decision Date: 25 May 2016

The Inspector considered that although the proposal would appear larger than the existing
bungalow on site, it would not appear excessively bulky and would strongly reflect the design
of the properties opposite. As such, in this regard, the development would not appear
incongruous in the street scene. Consequently, the development would not harm the
character and appearance of the area and would accord with Policy H10 of the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan (the 'Local Plan’) which requires a high
standard of design, Policy H11 of the Local Plan which requires development to be
compatible with the character of the area, and DG1 of the Local Plan which, among other
things, requires all development to be compatible with the street scene.

124



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 Minutes
	4 Planning Applications (decision)
	All_Planning_Applications
	16_00961_ITEM_1.pdf
	16-00961 revised.pdf
	16_00266_ITEM_2.pdf
	Land at Hill House  revised Appendices A and B.pdf
	Land at Hill House  revised Appendix C.pdf
	Land at Hill House  Appendix D.pdf
	Land at Hill House  Appendix E.pdf
	Land at Hill House  Appendix F.pdf
	16_01127_ITEM_3.pdf
	16-01127.pdf
	16_01165_ITEM_4.pdf
	16-01165.pdf
	16_01089_ITEM_5.pdf
	16-01089.pdf
	16_01120_ITEM_6.pdf
	16-01120.pdf


	5 Essential Monitoring Reports (monitoring)

